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The year 2018-19 saw Shriram City Union Finance Limited 

strategies. The result was eventually visible in the way the 

much hassles. 

In a broader sense, our unrelenting customer focus in serving 
the unserved sections of the society, combined with our internal 

identifying the right business segments and technological leverage 
led to a stable growth during the year. 

7.3%

 

12.1%

8.8% 39.7%

13.29% 8.06% 2.68% 23.12%



Vision
 Serving the underserved

 Creating value  
at the bottom of  

Mission
Striving to serve the largest 

number of common  
 

services
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What made us resilient and stable?

 Robust technology

 Team

` 24,071 crores
Total loan disbursed

38 lacs
Active customer base

27,267
 

March 31, 2019 

969
Branches

Geographic break up of:

 South: Branch count: 663   
 West: Branch count: 154  
 North: Branch count: 152

Credit ratings

AA+ A1+ AA AA AA 

 

A1+ 

 South: 65.17%   
 West: 26.91%  
 North: 7.92%

 South: 59.37%   
 West: 32.46%  
 North: 8.17%
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Our well diversified portfolio of AUMs has led us 
to deliver stable outcomes.  

 Auto 04%
 Personal 09%
 Gold 09%
 Two-wheelers 18%
 MSME 60%

` 29,582 crores
AUMs in 2018-19
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 Established relations and contacts with the 

semi-urban areas

model with decentralised branch model, 

than collateral-based one

Pradesh, Telangana, Tamil Nadu and 
Maharashtra - economically advanced states 

MSME Financing

leverage

systematised controls and technology

infrastructure & systematised controls

Loan Against Gold

 Provides loans to the existing customers of the 

Personal Loans

and used cars.  

 Covers both, three-wheeler as well as four-
wheeler automobile segments 

Auto Loans
of technology along with feet-on-street strategy

West, North and Central India

Two-Wheeler Loans
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In the aftermath of the recent crisis, there has been an enhanced focus on 

healthy, as demand at the ground level was strong.

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319

| 7



8 | Shriram City Union Finance Limited



With increasingly stringent regulations, it is necessary for our business to 
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on the overall strategy of their business. They are decisive and 

even during the toughest of business scenarios. 

During the year, we continuously focussed on training and 

understanding of the demand of the customers and maintain 
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`

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

16,717

19,576

23,132

27,582
29,582

 
`

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

3,531.63
3,856.02

4,434.52

5,158.46

5,781.30

 
`

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

17,202
18,649

22,356

24,922
24,071

 
`

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

2,154.94
2,451.42

2,897.21

3,419.92
3,697.01
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2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

10.86
10.32 9.76

8.44
9.01

 
`

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

86.18 80.37 84.34

107.80

149.88

`

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

558.06 529.78 556.06

710.94

988.88

 

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

29.03
26.14

23.81
21.37

23.12
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To,
The Members of Shriram City Union Finance Limited
Dear Members,
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is pleased to present this Report with the audited standalone as well  as consolidated 

` in crores

`
share)

`

(i) Basic
(ii) Diluted
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` `
`

rd

Company (

is also displayed on the web site of the Company ( ) 
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` `

`  
` `

at ` `

`

` `

` ` `

`

`

`  
`

`

`

`

`

`

`

dematerialised form were paid on submission of 

`

be claimed or renewed on maturity  as an March 

`

matured and claimed, but were not paid by the 

about the status of the frauds committed and 

`

crores with an increase of  `
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Guidelines and in accordance with the resolution 

of  ` `

matured debentures and interest accrued on these  

` in crores

 The Company has displayed the details of unpaid 

` in crores

Shares claimed by  

Transfer of unclaimed 
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Shriram Capital Limited and hence such entities are 

 
`

`

`

standards and LODR were  audited by the statutory 

 The annual accounts, annual reports and the 

related information of the Company and the audited 

continued as promoter and subsidiary of the 

deposits  is not applicable to our Company as our 

Net owned funds (` in crores)

in (` in crores)
Deposits ( ` in crores)
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practices and standards prescribed under LODR, 

for the purpose from the auditors of the Company 

on the business of the Company is attached as  

Company as recommended by the CSR Committee, 

is displayed on the website of the Company  
(

`

`

 The Company had optimum number of Directors and 

website of the Company (

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) 

declaration from each independent director about 

declaration from each independent director of the 

has formulated a policy for selection, appointment 

site of the Company (
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and annually the details of which is displayed on 
 
 

 
 

 

retire by rotation and has expressed that he would 

been made in notes to accounts for material 
departures, if any; 

and applied consistently and reasonable and 

Company for the year ended on that date;

and adherence to the internal controls, processes 

The internal audit reports were submitted by the 
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are commensurate with the nature of its business 

 

nd th 

`

`  
`

the shareholders, depositors, debenture holders and 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chairperson
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 The philosophy of the Company on Corporate 

the principles of transparency, accountability, 

 The Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) 

independent Directors to maintain independence 

which is more than half of the number of members 

appointment formulated by the Nomination and 

appointment letter is displayed on the web site of the 

familiarised with the Company, business, industry, 
roles and responsibilities, the details of which 
are displayed on the website of the Company 

of directorships in the Company at the time of their 

and shareholders and related party transactions are 
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The  Chairman and Company Secretary draft the 

and CFO with inputs from Directors where it is not 

papers and draft of the resolution to be passed are 

in the BM are communicated to the concerned 

access to all the information and employees of the 

of the BM are circulated to all the members of the 

minutes of the subsidiary company of the Company 

the concerned independent director based on the 

 The Board is the apex body constituted by share 

disclosure, communication and compliance with 

chairperson of the Committee and the Committee is 

Company of all applicable laws, as well as steps 
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 None of the Directors is a member of more than 

their directorship and Committee positions in 

in addition to, the members of the Board, senior 

 The Board has laid down “Code of Conduct for 

on the web site of the Company (

by the policy of the Company named “Policy on 

Board” displayed on the web site of the Company  

No other remuneration is paid to the Directors 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

The related attendance of members and composition 
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the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders 

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) 

the Board CSR Policy, implement and  monitor CSR 
Policy of the Company, (ii) recommend the amount 
of expenditure and report utilisation of money on 
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directors, Board and Committee on an annual basis, 

 

of the Company as a director on the Board of 

the Company (

on RPTs, which is displayed on the web site of the 
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rd

th Narada Gana Sabha (Mini 
st

nd

`

`

`

PBF

PBF
6

PBF

PBF
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Secretaries in practice was appointed as the 

rd

rd

based on the number shares of the Company held 

appointed by the Board shall submit his report on 

rd

 There were no instances of non compliance by the 

policy is disclosed in the web site of the Company 

Disclosure and Conduct”, which is displayed on the 

audit for reconciliation of share capital admitted 
with National Securities Depository Limited 

Ltd (“CDSL”) with the total issued and listed capital 

 The Company communicated with shareholders 
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`

Company are displayed on the website of the Company ( )
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`
`

`
`
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Limited

in
Public issue 
of NCDs 
allotted in 

Balasubramanian
in

Trustees for 
NCDs

Catalyst 
Trusteeship 
Limited

Bhusari Colony 

com
or 

Ministry of 

Securities and 

Complex, Bandra 

Towers, Dalal 

Depository National 
Securities 
Depository 
Limited (NSDL) Compound, Lower 

Toll free                    

Central 
Depository 

Limited (CDSL)

Marathon Futurex, 

Toll free                        
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% %
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For 

Partner
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the world for a second year in a row as it continued its 

expansionary stance of monetary policy and some 

on continued implementation of structural reforms and 

been supported by the implementation of reform 
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This led to a sharp drop in disbursements by NBFCs, 

`

measures such as increased concentration limits for 

`
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share to the total Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is about 

`

minutes 

on an incremental loan of `

` `

lacs
`

annual return only

to `

platform extended to Central Public Sector 
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`

`

credit card debt, amounted to `

`

` in crores

` in crores

Gold Loans
Personal

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319
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barriers

to tract up

push for startups will help us increase our loan 

demand for loans which in turn will increase the 

local competitors

`)

`)

Current Ratio 
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Company underwrites loans on the basis of assessed 
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internal processes, people and systems or from external 

Continuity Plan (BCP) to ensure harmonious continuity 
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entire NBFC sector which was seen in the last 6 months 

a timely manner at a reasonable price, are some of the 

and essentially anyone who participates in modern 

are scanned and monitored continuously for early 
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Policy include detailed directions to ensure the protection 

an application, to ensure there is no potential loss to 

internal resources as well as external experts to test and 

discloses the manner in which customer information is 

chain and hence to increase the awareness , periodical 
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preparation and the execution of annual internal audit 

fraud control, and compliance with applicable laws 

compliance with applicable statues, execution of 
transactions as per the authorisation and compliance 

Controls of the Company, broadly in accordance with 

businesses as well as the ability to implement its 

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319
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Chennai
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a) Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b)
c)
d)

e)
f) Not applicable

h) Not applicable

a) Name (s) of the related party and nature of relationship
b)
c)
d) Not applicable

e)
f) Not applicable
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i)
ii)
iii) Name of the Company Shriram City Union Finance Limited 

 

 

Finance Limited
Subsidiary

a)
b)
c)
d) Bodies Corporate
e)
f)
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a)
b) 
c) Bodies Corporate
d) 
e)

a) Mutual Funds
b)
c)
d)
e) Venture Capital Funds
f)

h) 
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify) 

a) Bodies Corporate
i) 
ii) 
b) 
i)

nominal Share Capital 
upto `

ii) 

nominal share capital 
in excess of  `

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319
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Trusts

Limited Liability 
Partnership
Corporate Bodies 

Unclaimed Securities 

Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 

Shriram Capital Limited
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Ltd shares from 

transaction

Limited

Master Fund Limited

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

6

accounts)
Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer
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Companies Fund Limited Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Reconnaissance Fund 
Limited Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

Transfer

54 | Shriram City Union Finance Limited



Sri Ramasubramanian 

Sri C R Dash, CS

Transfer

 

` in crores

Reduction
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` in crores

(a)

(b)
(c)

Commission 
Others, please specify 

` in crores

Board Committee 

Commission 
Others, please specify

Directors

Board Committee 

Commission
Others, please specify
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` in crores

Gross Salary
(a) 

(b)
(c )

Commission 
Others, please specify

Penalty
Punishment 

Penalty
Punishment 

Penalty
Punishment 
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a) Options Granted `

b) `

Source of shares Primary 
c)
d) Options exercised

period 

e)
f) Options lapsed

Variation of terms of options
h) Money realised by exercise of options `

i) Total number of options in force            
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Shares on exercise of option calculated in accordance 
`

 i) Method of calculation of employee compensation cost
Fair Value method

`

`

`

the Company

l) `

 `

m)  
 
 
 

 `

 `
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For 

Partner
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` `

`

`

Sri Gouse 
Mohiddin Director

Permanent
Chits (Maharash

No

Director 
Permanent

PGDBM
No
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`

Gouse 
Mohiddin Director

Permanent Shriram 
Chits (Ma
harashtra) 

No

Director
Permanent

PGDBM
Shriram 

Ltd

No

Subramani

nathan
Director

Permanent September 

Corporation

No

Ramchan
dran Nair

President Permanent Fullerton 

Co Ltd

No

Siddhartha President Permanent
PGDM

Corporation

No

6
sonal Loan 

Permanent No

Senior Vice 
President

Permanent Tata Motors 
Finance Ltd

No

National 
Sales Man

Permanent Capital First No

R Director 
Permanent Shriram 

Chits P Ltd
No

Senior Vice 
President

Permanent September Consultant No
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 Shriram City Union Finance Ltd (“Company”)  formulated a policy named “Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) 

i Smt Maya S Sinha Chairperson
ii Member
iii Member

`

 `

`

 `

 `

Shriram 
Matriculation 
School, 

Guntur Dis

Pradesh

infrastruc
ture, teacher 

ities
Shriram 
Matricula
tion School, 
Tiruneermalai

Tiruneermalai, 
Chennai, Tamil 
Nadu

infrastruc
ture, teacher 

ities

Pradesh
infrastruc
ture, teacher 

ities

will be in 
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Two wheeler 
mechanic opment and 

Multiple 
locations in 

placement
Commercial 

Pradesh
6

Club, New 
Delhi

New Delhi  Support for art 
and culture

 The Company had spent ` `

`
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6
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Director
and reimbursement of expenses incurred in performance of 

Director (other 

Director) director is a member as decided by the Board from time to 

Directors
`

To be decided by the 

appointee
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 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »

 »
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Name of the Company Shriram City Union Finance Limited 
 

6

wise)

the Company 
a)
b) Number of National Locations 

National

Paid up Capital (` in lacs) (Consolidated)
` in lacs) (Consolidated)

` in lacs) (Consolidated)

incurred 

of such subsidiary Company (s) 

The Subsidiary does not participate in the BR 

No other entity participates in the BR 

a)

b)
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N N N N N N

Board Director 

the policy 
6 Refer to the Note below
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The Company has not understood the Principles 

a position to formulate and implement the policies on 

6

therefore the polices conform to national standards

are internal to the Company

Please refer to the notes to  
accounts

opportunities 

(optional) 
a

b
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a

procured locally
 

Please indicate the Total number of employees

Please indicate the Number of permanent women employees
Please indicate the Number of permanent employees with disabilities 

No

6 Not applicable

Nil
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Please refer to the notes to  
accounts

Company

No
No

No

6

reported 
Nil

Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

in house, external NGOs and 

` CSR" 
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Please refer to the notes to  
accounts

Does the Company display product information on the product label, 

No

No

 Notes

functional heads of the Company 
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Related Party Transaction Policy 

Policy

Terms and conditions of appointment 

Code of Conduct for Board Members 

Policy on Material Subsidiary(ies) and 

Code for Fair Disclosure and Conduct

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 

Debt

Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
Financial Results of the Company
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from time to time;
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Limited;

Limited;

Proprietor
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Proprietor
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 Shriram Capital Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
The Members of Shriram City Union Finance Limited 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Opinion 
 We have audited the accompanying standalone 

2. Basis for Opinion 

3. Key Audit Matters 

84 |



Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)

Sr. 
No

Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

1 Transition date accounting policies
Design / controls

Substantive tests

2

Standalone
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4. Information Other than the Standalone 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon

5. Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone 
Financial Statements

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)
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7. Other Matter

Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)

Standalone
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8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Umesh S Abhyankar

Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)
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 referred to in paragraph 8 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019.

Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount (` 
In lacs)

Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Standalone
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`

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Umesh S Abhyankar

Annexure 1 (Contd.)
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 referred to in paragraph 8 (f), ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“The Act”)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING 

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

OPINION

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Umesh S Abhyankar

Standalone
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET 
as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Particulars Note As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018 

As at  
April 01, 2017 

I ASSETS
1 Financial assets

Loans
Investments

2

Total assets  29,41,525.09 
II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities
1 Financial liabilities

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -    -    -   

Deposits

2.

Total liabilities  23,02,392.64  21,77,099.32  18,32,523.42 
3 Equity

Total equity  6,39,132.45  5,55,465.58  4,96,882.41 
Total liabilities and equity  29,41,525.09  27,32,564.90  23,29,405.83 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Particulars Note Year ended 

 March 31, 2019
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Revenue from operations

Dividend income

(I) Total revenue from operations  5,77,877.53  5,15,672.69 

(III) Total income (I + II)  5,78,129.78  5,15,846.75 
Expenses

(IV) Total expenses (IV)  4,26,097.52  4,06,999.54 

(VIII) Tax Expense:

(XIII)  98,887.80  71,094.23 
(XIV) Other comprehensive income

A

Subtotal (A)  (913.93)  181.26 
B

Other comprehensive income (A + B)  (913.93)  181.26 
(XV) Total comprehensive income(XIII + XIV)  97,973.87  71,275.49 
(XVI) Earnings per equity share

Basic (`
Diluted (`

Standalone
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for :

Dividend Income

 2,30,991.46  2,14,194.68 
Movements in Working capital:

Cash generated from operations  34,748.82  (3,00,269.70)

Net Cash from/(used in) operating activities (A)  (14,606.85)  (3,36,957.40)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Contd.)

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Dividend Income
Net Cash from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (23,145.48)  (306.13)

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 1,02,554.74  3,27,430.07 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  98,228.89  33,426.48 

` in lacs

Components of cash and cash equivalents  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Total  98,228.89  33,426.48 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 

Standalone
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2019
A. Equity Share Capital

No. of shares ` in lacs
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2019  6,59,92,317  6,599.23 
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`

NOT EFFECTIVE 

Notes
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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6.1  Financial instruments

cost

 Business model assessment

 »

 »

 »

 »

 The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) 
test 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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(ii)  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(iii)  Financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(v)  Derivatives

 »

 »

 »

(vi) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

(vii) Financial guarantees

 »

(viii)
liabilities

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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assets and liabilities
 Recognition:

 

a) Financial assets:

asset

b) Financial liabilities

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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 Overview of the ECL principles

 Stage 1

 Stage 2

 Stage 3

al 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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 Financial guarantee contracts

 ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair 
value through OCI

 The mechanics of ECL:

 Probability of Default (PD) -

 Exposure at Default (EAD)-

 Loss Given Default (LGD) - 

 Forward looking information

 Collateral Valuation

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

104 |



 Collateral repossessed 

(xi)

(xii) Determination of fair value

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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 The Company recognises transfers between levels 
of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. No such 
instances of transfers between levels of the fair value 
hierarchy were recorded during the reporting period. 

6.2  Revenue from operations

(i)  Interest Income 

(ii) Dividend Income

entity and 

(iii)  Fees & Commission Income 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(iv)  Net gain on Fair value changes 

6.3  Expenses 

(i)  Finance costs

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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(iii)  Rent Expense:

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(iv)  Other income and expenses

(vi)  Taxes

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone

 | 109

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



6.4  Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentational currency

(ii)  Transactions and balances

6.5  Cash and cash equivalents

6.6  Property, plant and equipment

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Particulars Useful 
life as 

prescribed 
by Schedule 

II of the 
Companies 

Act, 2013

Useful 
life 

estimated  
by 

Company

Building

6.7 Intangible assets
6.8  Provisions

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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6.9  Contingent Liabilities 

6.10 Earning Per Share

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

in applying accounting policies that have the most 

7.1  Business Model Assessment

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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7.3  Fair value measurement:

7.4  Impairment of loans portfolio

7.5  Contingent liabilities and provisions other than 
impairment on loan portfolio 

7.7  Other estimates:

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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8.1  Investment in Subsidiaries, associates

8.2  Lease arrangements

8.3  Property, plant, equipment & intangible assets

8.4  Business Combination

8.5  Derecognition of previously recognised 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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9.1  Estimates

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Balances with bank in:

On Escrow accounts 

Total  98,228.89  33,426.48  43,259.94 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  30,189.86  20,065.11  21,770.69 

`

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:

` in lacs

Particulars
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening 
balance

ECL allowance - closing 
balance

 58,916.20  21,358.29  1,12,374.69  1,92,649.18  49,509.40  7,331.25  1,22,340.67  1,79,181.32 

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount, as follows:

` in lacs

Particulars
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening 
balance

Gross carrying amount closing 
balance 

 21,75,299.37  4,58,591.84  2,57,668.91  28,91,560.11  23,21,336.46  1,77,189.34  2,59,385.24  27,57,911.04 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

Amortised 
Cost

At Fair value Sub-total Others              
( At Cost)

Total
Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Through 

loss account

Designated 
at Fair value 

and loss 
account

As at 31 March 2019

Total Investments  38,843.91  -    31,050.73  -    31,050.73  16,727.91  86,622.55 

Total  Investments  38,843.91  -    31,050.73  -    31,050.73  16,727.91  86,622.55 

As at 31 March 2018

Total Investments  46,935.18  -    9,889.10  -    9,889.10  16,727.91  73,552.19 

Total  Investments  46,935.18  -    9,889.10  -    9,889.10  16,727.91  73,552.19 

As at 1 April 2017

Total Investments  44,628.15  -    9,950.27  -    9,950.27  16,727.91  71,306.33 

Total  Investments  44,628.15  -    9,950.27  -    9,950.27  16,727.91  71,306.33 

` `

dividend income

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Internal Grade 
Rating

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

 Stage 1 
Individual 

 Stage 2 
Individual  Stage 3  Total  Stage 1 

Individual 
 Stage 2 

Individual  Stage 3  Total  Stage 1 
Individual 

 Stage 2 
Individual  Stage 3  Total 

Performing

 73,552.19  -    71,306.33 

Non-performing

Total  86,622.55  -    -    86,622.55  73,552.19  -    -    73,552.19  71,306.33  -    -    71,306.33 

` in lacs

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

 Stage 1   Stage 2   Stage 3  Total  Stage 1   Stage 2   Stage 3  Total 
Gross carrying amount – 
opening balance

 71,306.33 

 73,416.02 

Closing balance  86,622.55  -    -    86,622.55  73,552.19  -    -    73,552.19 

Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:
` in lacs

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

 Stage 1   Stage 2   Stage 3  Total  Stage 1   Stage 2   Stage 3  Total 
Opening balance in ECL  -   

 -   

Closing balance in ECL  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Computer 
Software

Cost:

Disposals

Disposals

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

Disposals

Disposals

Net carrying amount as at April 01, 2017  841.14 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018  312.08 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019  157.36 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  3,442.49  1,883.85  3,395.22 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  6,983.30  4,654.73  3,461.23 

` in lacs

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2019 

 Notional 
Amounts 

 Fair Value -  
Liabilities 

(i) Currency derivatives: 

Sub total (i)  7,098.00  297.39 
(ii) Interest rate derivatives: 

Sub total (ii) 
(iii) Credit derivatives: 
(iv) Equity linked derivatives: 
(v) Other derivatives: 

 7,098.00  297.39 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Hedging activities and derivatives  

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  5,509.89  7,003.39  3,050.59 

` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

At Amor-
tised cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designat-
ed at fair 

value 
through 

and loss 
account

Total At Amor-
tised cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designat-
ed at fair 

value 
through 

and loss 
account

Total
At Amor-
tised cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair value 

through 

loss account

Total

Redeemable Non-Con-
vertible Debentures 
(Secured)

 20,920.73  -   

Privately placed 

Debt securities in 
India

India
Total  3,68,689.96  -    -    3,68,689.96  2,30,102.27  -    -    2,30,102.27  1,25,826.19  -    -    1,25,826.19 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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A. Public Issue of  Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of  ` 1,000/- each - Quoted

(i) Issued in 2012

` in lacs

Option Detail Rate of 
Interest

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  -    -    13,430.03 

Nature of security     
` 

(ii) Issued in 2013

` in lacs

Option Detail Rate of 
Interest

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  -    9,751.97  10,134.78 

Nature of security     
` 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(iii) Issued in 2014

` in lacs

Option Detail Rate of 
Interest

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  11,377.18  11,168.76  15,911.83 

Nature of security     
`

B. Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures - Secured

(i) Privately Placed  Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of ` 1,000/- each - Unquoted -Retail

Terms of repayment as at March 31,2019 : NIL

Terms of repayment as at March 31,2018

` in lacs

Redeemable at par within (from the date of balance 
sheet date)

Rate of interest

< 10% >= 10% < 
12%

>= 12% < 
14% Total

Total 3.47 635.60 0.53 639.60

Terms of repayment as at April 01, 2017

` in lacs

Redeemable at par within (from the date of balance 
sheet date)

Rate of interest

< 10% >= 10% < 
12%

>= 12% < 
14% Total

Total  45.44  3,415.32  1,986.05  5,446.82 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Nature of security     

(ii) Privately Placed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture -Institutional

Details of Privately Placed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture (NCDs) of  ` 1,000,000/- each - Quoted
` in lacs

Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  3,57,312.78  2,08,541.94  80,902.73 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Nature of security     
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Term Loan from Bank in foreign currency-Secured

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment 
Details Total Amount

`

Nature of Security    

Term Loan from Bank in Indian currency-Secured

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Total Amount

 

 

Total  9,39,640.88 

Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Total Amount

 

 

 

Total  9,62,293.55 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at April 01, 2017

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Total Amount

 

Total  7,37,596.68 
Nature of Security

Term Loan from Bank in Indian currency-Unsecured

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment 
Details Total Amount

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs

Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment 
Details Total Amount

`

Term Loan from Institution-Secured
Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Total Amount

Total  30,593.05 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Total Amount

Total  48,500.36 

Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at April 01, 2017

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Total Amount

Total  80,324.81 
Nature of security    

Commercial Papers-Unsecured

` in lacs

Rate of Interest Repayment 
Details

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Bullet Payment 

Total  1,78,583.47  2,18,831.02  1,96,446.31 

Loans repayable on demand-Secured

Cash Credit from Banks

` in lacs

Particulars Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Total  1,58,186.86  1,46,418.70  1,37,026.63 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Working capital Demand loan from Banks

` in lacs

Particulars Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Total  76,685.16  80,626.03  33,996.94 

Term loan from banks - ` -Securitisation

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount

Total  1,11,251.12 

Nature of security    

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount

Total  9,348.73 

Nature of security

Terms of Repayment as at April 1, 2017

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment Details Amount

Total  11,139.78 

Nature of security    

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

At 
amortised 

cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total

Deposits

Total  3,11,940.61  -    -   3,11,940.61  3,07,365.15  -    -    3,07,365.15  3,52,136.35  -    -    3,52,136.35 

` ` `

Details of Public Deposits - Unsecured

Terms of Repayment as at March 31,2019
` in lacs

Redeemable at par within Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 6% < 8% >= 8% < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  1,30,102.55  1,70,297.55  11,540.51  3,11,940.61 

Terms of Repayment as at March 31,2018
` in lacs

Redeemable at par within Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 6% < 8% >= 8% < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  1,32,806.22 1,59,500.60  15,058.33 307,365.15
Terms of Repayment as at April 01,2017

` in lacs
Redeemable at par within Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 6% < 8% >= 8% < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  51,421.99  1,72,417.89  1,28,296.47  3,52,136.35 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

At 
amortised 

cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total

Total  65,370.95  -    -    65,370.95  1,17,561.75  -    -    1,17,561.75  1,29,475.58  -    -    1,29,475.58 

India

Total  65,370.95  -    -    65,370.95  1,17,561.75  -    -    1,17,561.75  1,29,475.58  -    -    1,29,475.58 

Terms of repayment as at March 31,2019
(i) Privately Placed Subordinated Debts of Rs 1,000/- Each - Unquoted 

` in lacs
Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  57,685.07  57,685.07 

(ii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of  ` 1,000,000/ each - Quoted

` in lacs
Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  7,685.88  7,685.88 
As at March 31, 2018
Terms of Repayment

(i) Privately Placed Subordinated Debts of ` 1,000/- Each - Unquoted
` in lacs

Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  18.45  89,308.68  89,327.13 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(ii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of  ` 100,000/- each quoted
` in lacs

Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  20,573.27  20,573.27 

(iii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of ` 1,000,000/ each - Quoted
` in lacs

Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  7,661.35  7,661.35 
As at April 01, 2017
Terms of Repayment
(i) Privately Placed Subordinated Debts of  ` 1,000/- Each - Unquoted

` in lacs
Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) < 10% >= 10% < 12% > = 12% Total

Total  2,246.70  96,609.52  2.02  98,858.24 
`

(ii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of  ` 100,000/- each quoted

` in lacs
Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  22,983.12  22,983.12 

(iii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of ` 1,000,000/ each - Quoted

` in lacs
Redeemable at par Rate of interest
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date) >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  7,634.22  7,634.22 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 

Total  35,458.51  25,908.59  22,458.76 

Financial Guarantee Obligation

Credit quality of exposure

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  2,500.00  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Gross exposure reconciliation

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

Opening Balance of outstanding exposure  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Deletions
Closing Balance of outstanding exposure  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  2,527.25  2,441.13  1,611.94 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  1,527.16  1,638.27  1,432.86 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Authorised:

`

`

Total  15,850.00  15,850.00  15,850.00 
Issued share capital

`

Subscribed share capital

`

Paid up (fully paid up)

`

Total Equity 6599.23  6,596.58  6,594.34 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up Equity Shares

`

Total Equity 6599.23  6,596.58  6,594.34 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

` in lacs
Particulars No. of Shares ` in lacs
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  6,59,65,762  6,596.58 

As at March 31, 2019  6,59,92,262  6,599.23 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares     
`

` `

` `

` `

immediately preceding the reporting date:

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

` in lacs

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

No. of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class

No. of 
Shares

% holding in 
the class

No. of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class

Refer note 48 - Capital for the company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Particulars  Amount 
Securities Premium Account
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  1,75,425.47 

As at March 31, 2019  1,75,492.24 

Share Option Outstanding
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  113.50 

As at March 31, 2019  53.37 

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  88,431.30 

As at March 31, 2019  1,08,411.30 

Debenture Redemption Reserve
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  4,486.03 

As at March 31, 2019  2,844.29 

General Reserve
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  73,341.39 

As at March 31, 2019  85,339.27 

Capital Reserve
As at April 01, 2017
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Particulars  Amount 
Capital Redemption Reserve
As at April 01, 2017
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Other Comprehensive Income
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  181.26 

As at March 31, 2019  (732.67)

Retained Earnings
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  1,96,689.19 

As at March 31, 2019  2,50,924.56 

Total other equity
As at April 01, 2017
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

140 |



Proposed Dividend on equity shares
` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

The Board proposed dividend on equity shares
 

` ` 

Total  12,729.14  9,543.43  7,937.00 
Nature and purpose of reserve
Securities Premium Reserve:

Capital Reserve:

Capital Redemption Reserve:

Debenture Redemption Reserve:

 
`

` ` ` 
` ` 

General Reserve:

Statutory Reserve:

Retained earnings:

Other Comprehensive Income:

Share Option Outstanding: 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 
at FVOCI

On Financial 
Assets 

measured at 
Amortised 

cost

Interest 
income on 
Financial 

Assets 

at FVTPL

Total

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 
at FVOCI

On Financial 
Assets 

measured at 
Amortised 

cost

Interest 
income on 
securities 

at FVTPL

Total

investments

Total  -    5,67,691.63  -   5,67,691.63  -    5,08,404.37  -    5,08,404.37 

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  15.60  227.92 

Revenue from contracts with customers

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Type of Services or Service

Total revenue from contract with customers  -    212.32 
Geographical markets
India

Total revenue from contract with customers  -    212.32 
Timing of revenue recognition

Total revenue from contracts with customers  -    212.32 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Contract Balance

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  -    -   

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  864.24  854.08 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  864.24  854.08 

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  26.16  1,505.31 

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  252.25  174.06 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

On Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at fair value 
through 

 On 
Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

Cost 

Total

On Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at fair value 
through 

On 
Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

Cost

Total

Total  -    1,97,990.79  1,97,990.79  -    1,66,412.87 1,66,412.87 

` in lacs

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

On Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

Fair Value 
through OCI

 On 
Financial 

instruments 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

cost 

Total

On Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

Fair Value 
through OCI

On 
Financial 

instruments 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

cost

Total

Loans
Total  -    13,467.86  13,467.86  -    39,348.45  39,348.45 

based on evaluation stage:

` in lacs

Particulars
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

 Stage 1 
Collective 

Stage 2 
Collective

Stage 3 
Collective

Total Stage 1 
Collective

Stage 2 
Collective

Stage 3 
Collective

Total

Loans and advances to 

Total impairment loss  9,406.80  14,027.04  (9,965.98)  13,467.86  18,487.55  (32.69)  20,893.59  39,348.45 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  83,851.29  70,631.30 

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total 3,119.55 3,325.93

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  30,670.47  33,073.06 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Details of CSR expenditure:

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  850.00  1,400.00 

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total tax charge  53,144.46  37,752.98 

Reconciliation of the total tax charge:

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

 1,52,032.26  1,08,847.21 

` 

Total Tax  53,126.15  37,505.99 

 53,144.46  37,752.98 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Deferred Tax

` in lacs

Particulars

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Income 
Statement OCI

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Total  6,056.46  1,215.71  3,507.43  (490.94)

` in lacs

Particulars

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Income 
Statement OCI

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2018

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Total  9,212.46  1,355.27  (376.66)  95.93 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Standalone
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` in lacs

Particulars

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

As at 
 March 31, 2017

As at  
March 31, 2017

Total  9,417.18  1,840.73 

Amount recognised in respect of current tax/ deferred tax directly in equity:

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Tax losses and Tax credits

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

`  
` `

Total  4,224.50  4,505.86  5,947.80 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

`

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings  
per share (` in lacs)

dilution (` in lacs)
Earnings per share

`

`

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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The details of Series 1 have been summarised below: 

` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price per 

share (in `)

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price per 

share (in `)

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price per 

share (in `)

` in lacs

As at March 31,
Range of 

exercise prices 
per share (in `)

No. of options 
outstanding

Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life of 
options (in years)

Weighted average 
Exercise Price 
per share (in `)

2019
2018
2017

STOCK OPTIONS GRANTED     
`

` in lacs
Particulars 2006 2007 2008 2009

`

`

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

share by applying the fair value based method is as follows:

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

`

`

`

`

`

Basic (`

Diluted (`

` `

Subsidiary of the Company is:

` in lacs

Name of the subsidiary Country of 
Incorporation

Principal 
place of 
business

Principal 
activities 

For the year No of Equity 
% equity 
interestending Shares Held (FV 

of ` 10 /- each)
 India

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` ` 
` ` 

` ` 
` 

Interest Risk:

Salary Risk:

Investment Risk:

Asset Liability Matching Risk:

Mortality Risk: 

Concentration Risk:

Compensated absences      

`
` 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

 460.82  645.80 
Remeasurement of gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income :

income (B)
 1,404.93  (277.18)

Total (A+B)  1,865.75  368.62 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Change in the obligation during the year ended

 4,809.03  3,045.11 

Change in the Fair value of plan assets :

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  4,674.89  2,248.63 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 134.14  796.48  427.87 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Investments quoted in active markets:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Total  4,674.89  2,248.63  2,305.07 

Sensitivity Analysis

` in lacs

Assumptions  Discount rate  Future salary 
increases Attrition rate

 1% 
increase 

 1% 
decrease 

1% 
increase 

 1% 
decrease 

 1% 
increase 

 1% 
decrease 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Expected payment for future years March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Total expected payments (Undiscounted)  14,103.28  9,200.04 

`

Asset Liability Matching Strategies

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months Total Within 12 

months
After 12 
months Total Within 12 

months
After 12 
months Total

Assets

Financial assets

Loans

Investments

Total assets 15,44,837.21 13,96,687.88  29,41,525.09 14,68,787.26 12,63,777.64 27,32,564.90 13,79,876.38 9,49,529.45  23,29,405.83 

Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

Deposits

Total Liabilities 11,57,622.27 11,44,770.37  23,02,392.64  9,82,249.10 11,94,850.22 21,77,099.32  8,14,894.82 10,17,628.53  18,32,523.35 

Net  3,87,214.94  2,51,917.51  6,39,132.45  4,86,538.16  68,927.42  5,55,465.58  5,64,981.56  (68,099.08)  4,96,882.48 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars As at March 
31, 2018 Cash Flows Exchange Other * As at March 

31, 2019
At Amortised Cost

Deposits

Total  21,57,425.14  1,16,862.36  165.46  (524.64)  22,73,928.32 

` in lacs

Particulars As at April 
01, 2017 Cash Flows Exchange Other * As at March 

31, 2018
At Amortised Cost

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars As at April 
01, 2017 Cash Flows Exchange Other * As at March 

31, 2018

Deposits

Total  18,16,531.47  3,40,113.07  -    770.61  21,57,415.15 

(A) Contingent Liabilities

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

d
Total  8,036.75  9,430.29  5,621.67 

` 

(B) Commitments not provided for

` in lacs

Commitments not provided for As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(C) Lease Disclosures

As a lessee

Operating Lease :

` `

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Relationship  Name of the party

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Relationship  Name of the party

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Capital Management

` in lacs

Regulatory capital As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total capital funds

Risk weighted assets (` in lacs)  26,99,007.39  26,30,717.17  22,20,176.11 

Total capital ratio 23.12% 21.37% 23.81%
`

`

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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49.1 Valuation Principle     

     
49.2 Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabilities

As at March 31, 2019     
` in lacs

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3  Total 

 10,603.97  20,366.72  80.04  31,050.73 
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  10,603.97  20,366.72  80.04  31,050.73 

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

 297.39  -    -    297.39 

recurring basis
 297.39  -    -    297.39 

As at March 31, 2018
` in lacs

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3  Total 

 9,516.15  322.29  50.67  9,889.11 
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  9,516.15  322.29  50.67  9,889.11 

As at April 01, 2017
` in lacs

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3  Total 

 8,608.01  294.59  1,047.67  9,950.27 
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  8,608.01  294.59  1,047.67  9,950.27 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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49.3 Valuation techniques

Equity instruments

Mutual Funds

Foreign exchange contracts

liabilities measured at fair value:

` in lacs

Particulars
Equity instruments

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Opening Balance  50.67  1,047.67 

Issuances

Closing Balance  80.04  50.67 
Unrealised gains and losses related to balances held at the end of the year  29.37  -   

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
 Fair value 

 Level 3 
assets  

 Level 3 
liabilities  Valuation 

technique unobservable 
inputs  As at March 

31, 2019 
 As at March 

31, 2019 
 Based on the 

investee company 
investee company 

` in lacs
 Fair value 

 Level 3 
assets  

 Level 3 
liabilities  Valuation 

technique unobservable 
inputs  As at March 

31, 2018
 As at March 

31, 2018
 Based on the 

investee company 
investee company 

49.5 Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

` in lacs
 As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

 Favourable 
changes 

 Unfavourable 
changes 

 Favourable 
changes 

 Unfavourable 
changes 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

As at March 31, 2019  Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value
 Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans
Investments 

28,86,343.99  98,228.89  46,924.55 27,37,852.92 28,83,006.36 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

22,98,338.23  -   18,81,137.07  4,32,363.72 23,13,500.79 

` in lacs

As at March 31, 2018  Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value
 Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans
Investments

26,97,768.25  33,426.48  36,794.22 26,72,939.55 27,43,160.25 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

21,73,019.92  -   17,16,528.58  5,51,347.73 22,67,876.31 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

 As at April 01, 2017  Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value
 Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans

22,94,653.99  43,259.94  16,727.91 22,44,871.27 23,04,859.12 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

18,29,478.62  -   13,24,224.67  6,13,004.63 19,37,229.30 

Loans and advances to customers

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Financial assets at amortised cost 

Issued debt

Borrowings

Note 50 Risk Management

50.1.1 Risk management structure

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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50.1.2 Risk mitigation and risk culture 

50.1.3 Risk measurement and reporting systems

50.1.4 Excessive risk concentration

50.2 Credit Risk

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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The Company’s internal credit rating grades on days past due (dpd) basis:

Internal rating grade Internal rating description

50.2.2 Impairment assessment

50.2.2.2 PD estimation process

50.2.2.3 Exposure at Default (EAD)

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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50.2.2.4 Loss Given Default (LGD) 

50.2.3 Analysis of risk concentration
`

`

Credit risk exposure analysis

` in lacs

Particulars
 March 31, 2019

 Stage 1 
Collective 

 Stage 2 
Collective  Stage 3  POCI  Total 

28,90,378.59 
 1,181.52 

Total 21,75,299.36  4,58,591.84  2,57,668.91  -   28,91,560.11 

50.3 Liquidity risk and funding management

 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2019:
` in lacs

Particulars  Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

 Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 
years 

 Over 5 
years  Total 

Financial assets  -   
 1,30,853.86 

Loans 36,69,549.79 
 44,629.50 

 31,050.73 
 3,442.49 

assets
 6,04,944.40  4,93,303.51  8,77,630.49 11,99,515.76  4,05,030.95  2,99,101.26 38,79,526.37 

 297.39 
Deposits  3,59,518.79 

 4,43,720.34 
17,16,178.68 

 71,450.09 
 35,458.51 

liabilities
 5,07,825.22  2,54,234.61  5,21,321.37 11,48,884.60  1,93,199.58  1,158.42 26,26,623.80 

assets/(liabilities)
 97,119.18  2,39,068.90  3,56,309.12  50,631.16  2,11,831.37  2,97,942.84 12,52,902.58 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2018:
` in lacs

Particulars  Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

 Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 
years 

 Over 5 
years  Total 

Financial assets  -   
 55,144.84 

Loans  35,44,713.29 
 54,965.36 

 9,889.10 
 1,883.85 

assets
 5,36,908.35  4,52,495.54  9,24,836.05  10,91,546.52  4,40,839.00  2,19,970.98  36,66,596.44 

Financial liabilities
-

Deposits  3,47,250.55 
 2,79,792.58 

 16,76,573.89 

 1,35,663.33 
 25,908.59 

liabilities
 2,58,266.45  1,34,859.08  6,99,391.42  11,31,297.30  2,41,374.69  -    24,65,188.94 

assets/(liabilities)
 2,78,641.89  3,17,636.46  2,25,444.63  (39,750.78)  1,99,464.31  2,19,970.98  12,01,407.50 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on April 01, 2017:
` in lacs

Particulars  Less than 3 
months 

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

 Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 
years 

 Over 5 
years  Total 

Financial assets
 66,596.44 

Loans  29,09,934.65 

 54,018.02 

 9,950.27 

 3,395.22 

assets
4,99,716.37  3,95,955.79  8,48,567.89  8,40,599.24  3,44,659.60  1,14,395.71  30,43,894.60 

Financial liabilities
 -   

Deposits  3,95,713.41 
 1,48,815.34 

 13,71,085.06 

 1,61,532.86 
 22,458.76 

liabilities
 2,42,381.91  1,60,064.20  4,87,352.45  9,58,373.19  2,51,433.68  -    20,99,605.43 

assets/(liabilities)
 2,57,334.47  2,35,891.60  3,61,215.44 (1,17,773.95)  93,225.92  1,14,395.71  9,44,289.17 

` in lacs

Particulars Over 6 months 
& upto 1 year Over 5 years  Total 

As at March 31, 2019 

Total commitments  233.57  8,036.75  8,270.32 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Over 6 months 
& upto 1 year Over 5 years  Total 

As at March 31, 2018 

Total commitments  305.32  9,430.29  9,735.61 

As at April 01, 2017  

Total commitments  119.35  5,621.67  5,741.02 

50.4 Market Risk

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

176 |



50
.4

.1
 T

ot
al

 m
ar

ke
t r

is
k 

ex
po

su
re

` i
n 

la
cs

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

 A
s a

t M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9 

 A
s a

t M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
8

 A
s a

t A
pr

il 
01

, 2
01

7 
Pr

im
ar

y 
ri

sk
 

se
ns

iti
vi

ty
Ca

rr
yi

ng
 

am
ou

nt
Tr

ad
ed

 ri
sk

 
No

n-
tr

ad
ed

 
ri

sk
Ca

rr
yi

ng
 

am
ou

nt
Tr

ad
ed

 ri
sk

 
No

n-
tr

ad
ed

 
ri

sk
Ca

rr
yi

ng
 

am
ou

nt
 T

ra
de

d 
ri

sk
  

No
n-

tr
ad

ed
 

ri
sk

As
se

ts

Lo
an

s
 

To
ta

l
 2

9,
00

,6
66

.8
1 

 3
1,

05
0.

73
 

 2
8,

69
,6

16
.0

8 
 2

6,
90

,9
29

.4
4 

 9
,8

89
.1

0 
 2

6,
81

,0
40

.3
4 

 2
2,

87
,8

76
.3

5 
 9

,9
50

.2
7 

 2
2,

77
,9

26
.0

8 

Li
ab

ili
tie

s

De
po

sit
s

To
ta

l
 2

2,
98

,3
38

.2
3 

 -   
 2

2,
98

,3
38

.2
3 

 2
1,

73
,0

19
.9

2 
 -   

 2
1,

73
,0

19
.9

2 
 1

8,
29

,4
78

.6
2 

 -   
 1

8,
29

,4
78

.6
2 

 N
ot

es
 

fo
rm

in
g 

pa
rt

 o
f S

ta
nd

al
on

e 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 M
ar

ch
 3

1,
 2

01
9

Standalone

 | 177

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



 

Exemptions applied:    

 

 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Estimates:

Equity reconciliation for 1 April 2017

` in lacs
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Loans 
Investments 

Total (A)  24,28,885.77  (1,24,281.51)  23,04,604.26 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Total (B)  21,206.73  3,594.85  24,801.57 
Total Assets (A+B)  24,50,092.50  (1,20,686.66)  23,29,405.83 

Liabilities and equity 
Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Deposits

Total (C)  18,23,975.36  5,503.26  18,29,478.62 

Total (D)  1,23,276.24  (1,20,230.47)  3,044.80 
Total Liabilities (C+D)  19,47,251.61  (1,14,727.21)  18,32,523.42 

Total equity  5,02,840.85  (5,958.44)  4,96,882.41 
Total liabilities and equity  24,50,092.46  (1,20,685.65)  23,29,405.83 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Equity reconciliation for 31 March 2018
` in lacs

Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Loans 
Investments 

Total (A)  28,67,055.32  (1,59,397.97)  27,07,657.35 

Total (B)  23,627.81  1,279.74  24,907.55 
Total Assets (A+B)  28,90,683.13  (1,58,118.23)  27,32,564.90 

Liabilities and equity 
Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Deposits

Total (C)  21,67,430.78  5,589.14  21,73,019.92 

Total (D)  1,66,631.77  (1,62,552.36)  4,079.40 
Total Liabilities (C+D)  23,34,062.55  (1,56,963.22)  21,77,099.32 

Total equity  5,56,620.58  (1,155.00)  5,55,465.58 
Total liabilities and equity  28,90,683.13  (1,58,118.22)  27,32,564.90 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations

Dividend income

Total revenue from operations

Total Income  5,09,906.84  5,939.91  5,15,846.75 

Expenses

Total expenses  4,08,128.57  (1,129.86)  4,06,999.54 

Other comprehensive income

Subtotal (A)  -    181.26  181.26 

Subtotal (B)  -    -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income  -    181.26  181.26 
Total comprehensive income  66,472.05  4,804.26  71,275.49 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars
Note 

Reference Reconciliation of Equity Reconciliation 

March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017
Equity after tax as per IGAAP  5,50,024.00  4,96,246.51 

 -    -   66,472.05 

assets 

Total  5,48,869.00  4,90,288.07  71,275.49 
Notes:    

 
` `

`
` 

`
`

2.  Recording of impairment as per Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”)

`
`

3.  Interest income on NPA 

 

` ` 
 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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4.  Fair valuation of Investment

` 

` 

5.  Deferred Tax    

 

`

` 

6.  Reversal of Provision of standard/non-performing assets (NPA)

 
` `

7.  Other comprehensive income    

8.  Others 

` ` 

`

` 

` 

`

`

and `

`

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Note 
Reference

Previous 
GAAP as at  

March 31, 2018 
Adjustments Ind AS as at  

March 31, 2018 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents

 (9,831.81)  (1.65)  (9,833.46)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  
of the year

 43,258.26 -  43,259.94 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  33,426.45 -  33,426.49 

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31,  2019

As at  
March 31,  2018

As at  
April 1,  2017

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` ` 

`

liabilities

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

 

 

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

(1) Value of investments

In India

In India

In India

(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

61.1 Forward rate agreement/Interest rate swap

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

61.2 Exchange Traded interest rate (IR) derivatives : Nil

61.3 Disclosures on risk exposure of derivatives

Qualitative disclosures

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Quantitative Disclosures

` in lacs
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Particulars Currency 
derivatives 

Interest rate 
derivatives

 Currency 
derivatives  

 Interest rate 
derivatives 

Rating 
Agency Rating Instrument As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

S.no Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Investments   in   Mortgage   Backed   Securities(MBS) and other 
securitised exposures -

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector  93,537.03 99,181.59

` in lacs

S.no Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Total exposure to capital market  51,793.56  69,831.52 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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NBFC

` in lacs
Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies' shown under the head As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

`

70.1 Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NPAs

a. Concentration of deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs)

` in lacs
As at March 31, 2019

b. Concentration of advances

` in lacs
As at March 31, 2019

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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c.Concentration of exposures

` in lacs
As at March 31, 2019

d. Concentration of NPAs #

` in lacs
As at March 31, 2019

e. Sector-wise NPAs #

` in lacs
S. 

no. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total 
Advances in that sector

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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70.2 Movement of NPAs #

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

 

ACCOUNTING NORMS)

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` ` 

` `

Vide DNBS. PD. CC NO. 256/03.10.042/2011-12 dated 02 MARCH, 2012

Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2019:

` in lacs

Particulars Less than 
` 1 lacs ` 1 to 25 lacs Greater than 

  ` 25 lacs Total

Number Value Number Value Number Value Number Value
A) Person involved  -   

Total  -    -    1  12.40  -    -    -    -   
B) Type of Fraud

accounts

Total  -    -    1  12.40  -    -    -    -   

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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As at March 31, 2019
` in lacs

Particulars Upto 30/31 
Days

Over 1 
month 
upto 2 

Months

Over 2 
months 

upto 
3months

Over 
3 months 
& up to 6 
months

Over 6 
Months 

& up to 1 
year

Over 
1 year 

& up to 3 
years

Over 
3 years 

& up to 5 
years

Over 
5 years Total

Deposits

Investments

assets

As at March 31, 2018
` in lacs

Particulars Upto 30/31 
Days

Over 1 
month 
upto 2 

Months

Over 2 
months 

upto 
3months

Over 
3 months 
& up to 6 
months

Over 6 
Months 

& up to 1 
year

Over 
1 year 

& up to 3 
years

Over 
3 years 

& up to 5 
years

Over 
5 years Total

Deposits

Investments

assets

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 

Notes 
forming part of Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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As required in terms of paragraph 18 of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically 
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

Schedule to the Balance Sheet

` in lacs
 Particulars  As at March 31, 2019 

Liabilities side :
(1) Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest accrued 

thereon but not paid:
 Amount 

outstanding 
 Amount 
overdue 

` in lacs
(2) Break-up of (1)(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of 

interest accrued thereon but not paid):
 Amount 

outstanding 
 Amount 
overdue 

Assets side :

` in lacs
(3) Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables (other 

than those included  in (4) below ):
 Amount outstanding 

Standalone
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` in lacs
(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting  Amount outstanding 

 

€

€

` in lacs
(5) Break-up of investments :  Amount outstanding 
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` in lacs
(5) Break-up of investments :  Amount outstanding 

` in lacs
(6)

Category Amount (Net of provisions)
 Secured  Unsecured 

Standalone
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` in lacs
(7)

(both quoted and unquoted): 
Category  Market Value / 

Break up or fair 
value or NAV* 

 Book Value (Net 
of Provisions) 

` in lacs
(8) Other information

 Particulars  Amount 

Notes :

198 |



` in lacs
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Shriram Housing 
Finance Limited

Investment included in total assets

Standalone
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Independent Auditor's Report
The Members of Shriram City Union Finance Limited 

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

1. Opinion 
 We have audited the accompanying consolidated 

2. Basis for Opinion 

3. Key Audit Matters 
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Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)

Sr. 
No

Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

1 Transition date accounting policies
Design / controls

Substantive tests

2

Consolidated
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4. Information Other than the Standalone 
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon

 

5. Responsibilities of Management and Those 
Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 

 

Sr. 
No

Key Audit Matter Auditors Response

3 Sale of Assets by subsidiary to an asset 
reconstruction company (ARC)

` ` 
 

`  
`

Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)
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6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)

Consolidated

 | 203

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



7. Other Matters 

`

`

amounting to `

Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)
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Independent Auditor's Report (Contd.)

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Umesh S Abhyankar

Consolidated
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 8 (f) To The Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on 
the Consolidated Financial Statements Of Shriram City Union Finance Limited 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
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Annexure (Contd.)

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL 
CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

OPINION

OTHER MATTER

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Umesh S Abhyankar

Consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Particulars Note As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
 March 31, 2018 

As at  
April 01, 2017 

I ASSETS
1 Financial assets

Loans

2

Total assets  31,41,834.55 
II LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Liabilities
1 Financial liabilities

 -   

 -   

 -   

 -    -    -   

Deposits

2.

Total liabilities  24,72,849.98  23,25,981.10  19,80,112.71 
3 Equity

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  6,58,429.72  5,73,424.10  5,11,870.67 
Non-controlling interest  10,554.85  10,160.34  9,285.49 
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity  31,41,834.55  29,09,565.54  25,01,268.87 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS
for the year ended March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Particulars Note Year ended 
 March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Revenue from operations

Dividend income

(I) Total revenue from operations  6,06,694.53  5,43,672.02 

(III) Total income (I + II)  6,06,985.52  5,43,896.64 
Expenses

(IV) Total expenses (IV)  4,52,446.51  4,29,248.51 

(VIII) Tax expense:

(XIII)  1,00,552.69  74,930.00 
(XIV) Other comprehensive income

A

Subtotal (A)  (854.62)  186.25 
B

Subtotal (B)
Other comprehensive income (A + B)  (854.62)  186.25 

(XV) Total comprehensive income (XIII + XIV)  99,698.07  75,116.25 
(XVI)

(XVII) Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year attributable to

(XVIII) Total comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the year attributable to

(XIX) Earnings per equity share
Basic (`
Diluted (`

Consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for :

 2,35,949.83  2,21,018.08 
Movements in Working capital:

Cash generated from operations  27,784.10  (2,99,083.68)

Net Cash from/(used in) operating activities (A)  (23,895.83)  (3,37,311.76)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash from/(used in) investing activities (B)  (35,170.05)  (1,654.54)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended March 31, 2019 (Contd.)

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
 March 31, 2019

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 1,24,778.47  3,29,178.66 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  99,676.01  33,963.42 

` in lacs

Components of cash and cash equivalents  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

 -    -   
Total  99,676.01  33,963.42 

   

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 

Consolidated
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended March 31, 2019
A. Equity Share Capital

No. of shares ` In lacs
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2019  6,59,92,317  6,599.23 
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`

Name 
of the sub-
sidiary/

Country 
of incor-
poration

Share of 
owner-
ship in-

terest as 
at March 
31, 2019

Share of 
owner-
ship in-

terest as 
at March 
31, 2018

Share of 
owner-
ship in-

terest as 
at April 
01, 2017

Limited 

Notes
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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NOT EFFECTIVE 

6.1  Financial instruments

cost

 Business model assessment

 »

 »

 »

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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 »

 The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) 
test 

(ii)   Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(v)  Derivatives

 »

 »

 »

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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(vi) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

(vii) Financial guarantees

 »

assets and liabilities
 Recognition:

 

a) Financial assets:

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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b) Financial liabilities

 Overview of the ECL principles

 Stage 1

 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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 Stage 2

 Stage 3

 Financial guarantee contracts

 ECL on Debt instruments measured at fair 
value through OCI

 The mechanics of ECL:

 Probability of Default (PD) -

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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 Exposure at Default (EAD)-

 Loss Given Default (LGD) - 

 Forward looking information

 Collateral Valuation

 Collateral repossessed 

(xi)

(xii) Determination of fair value

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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 The Group recognises transfers between levels of the fair 
value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during 
which the change has occurred. No such instances of 
transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy were 
recorded during the reporting period. 

6.2  Revenue from operations

(i)  Interest Income 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(ii) Dividend Income

entity and 

(iii)  Fees & Commission Income  

(iv)  Net gain on Fair value changes  

6.3  Expenses 

(i)  Finance costs

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(iii)  Rent Expense:

(iv)  Other income and expenses

(vi)  Taxes

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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6.4  Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentational currency

(ii)  Transactions and balances

6.5  Cash and cash equivalents

6.6  Property, plant and equipment

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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 Depreciation

Particulars Useful 
life as 

prescribed 
by Schedule 

II of the 
Companies 

Act, 2013

Useful 
life 

estimated  

by Group

Building

Vehicles 

6.7 Intangible assets

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

 | 227

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



6.8  Provisions

6.9  Contingent Liabilities 

6.10 Earning Per Share

6.11 Share Based Payment Transactions

ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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in applying accounting policies that have the most 

7.1  Business Model Assessment

7.3 Fair value measurement:

7.4  Impairment of loans portfolio

7.5  Contingent liabilities and provisions other than 
impairment on loan portfolio  

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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7.7  Other estimates:

 Exemptions applied

8.1  Lease arrangements

8.2  Property, plant, equipment & intangible assets

8.3  Business Combination

8.4  Derecognition of previously recognised 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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9.1  Estimates

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Balances with bank in:

On Escrow accounts 

Total  99,676.01  33,963.42  43,751.06 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  30,327.51  20,201.06  21,770.69 

`
lacs 

`
`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:

` in lacs
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL allowance - opening 
balance

ECL allowance - closing 
balance

 59,815.56  21,945.42  1,13,490.26  1,95,251.24  50,465.47  8,237.34  1,24,846.90  1,83,549.71 

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount, as follows:

` in lacs
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying amount opening 
balance

 Gross carrying amount closing 
balance 

 23,34,566.72  4,78,925.82 2,62,833.76  30,76,326.30  24,68,636.21  1,98,847.35 2,69,434.66  29,36,918.22 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Particulars Amortised 

Cost
At Fair value Total

Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Through 

loss account

Designated at Fair 

and loss account
As at 31 March 2019

Total Investments  38,843.91  3,978.28  48,932.20  -    91,754.39 

Total  Investments  38,843.91  3,978.28  48,932.20  -    91,754.39 

Total - Net  38,843.91  3,973.54  48,932.20  -    91,749.65 

As at 31 March 2018

Total Investments  46,935.18  7,637.60  12,192.20  -    66,764.98 

Total  Investments  46,935.18  7,637.60  12,192.20  -    66,764.98 

Total - Net  46,935.18  7,617.72  12,192.20  -    66,745.10 

As at 1 April 2017

Total Investments  44,628.15  7,137.68  11,750.75  -    63,516.58 

Total  Investments  44,628.15  7,137.68  11,750.75  -    63,516.58 

Total - Net  44,628.15  7,119.44  11,750.75  -    63,498.34 
` `

`

` `

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Internal Grade 
Rating

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

 Stage 1 
Individual 

 Stage 2 
Individual 

 Stage 3 
Individual  Total  Stage 1 

Individual 
 Stage 2 

Individual 
 Stage 3 

Individual  Total  Stage 1 
Individual 

 Stage 2 
Individual 

 Stage 3 
Individual  Total 

Performing

 -   

Non-performing

Total  91,749.65  -    -    91,749.65  66,745.10  -    -    66,745.10  63,498.34  -    -    63,498.34 

` in lacs

Particulars
As at Year Ended March 31, 2019 As at Year Ended March 31, 2018

 Stage 1   Stage 2   Stage 3  Total  Stage 1   Stage 2   Stage 3  Total 
Gross carrying amount – 
opening balance

Closing balance  91,749.65  -    -    91,749.65  66,745.10  -    -    66,745.10 

Reconciliation of ECL balance is given below:

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended  
March 31, 2019 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018 

Opening balance in ECL  18.24 

Closing balance in ECL  4.74  19.88 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars Computer 
Software

Cost:

Disposals

Disposals

Accumulated amortisation and impairment:

Disposals

Disposals

Net carrying amount as at April 01, 2017  844.48 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018  441.75 
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019  487.40 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  3,799.49  2,241.50  6,762.77 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  15,743.87  11,128.48  4,493.64 

# Repossessed House Property

Impairment loss:
`

Measurement:

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars
 As at March 31, 2019 

 Notional 
Amounts 

 Fair Value -  
Liabilities 

(i) Currency derivatives: 

Sub total (i)  7,098.00  297.39 
(ii) Interest rate derivatives: 

Sub total (ii) 
(iii) Credit derivatives: 
(iv) Equity linked derivatives: 
(v) Other derivatives: 

 7,098.00  297.39 

Hedging activities and derivatives  

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total  6,764.54  7,969.48  3,925.68 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

At Amor-
tised cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designat-
ed at fair 

value 
through 

and loss 
account

Total At Amor-
tised cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designat-
ed at fair 

value 
through 

and loss 
account

Total
At Amor-
tised cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair val-
ue through 

and loss 
account

Total

Redeemable Non-Con-
vertible Debentures 
(Secured)

 20,920.73  -    39,476.63 

Privately placed  4,15,327.57  -    -    4,15,327.57  2,76,139.39  -    -    2,76,139.39  1,62,967.16  -    -    1,62,967.16 
Total  4,26,704.75  -    -   4,26,704.75  2,97,060.12  -    -   2,97,060.12  2,02,443.79  -    -   2,02,443.79

Total  4,26,704.75  -    -   4,26,704.75  2,97,060.12  -    -   2,97,060.12  2,02,443.79  -    -   2,02,443.79

A. Public Issue of  Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of  ` 1,000/- each - Quoted

(i) Issued in 2012

` in lacs

Option Detail Rate of 
Interest

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  -    -    13,430.03 

Nature of security     
`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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(iii) Issued in 2014
` in lacs

Option Detail Rate of 
Interest

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  11,377.18  11,168.76  15,911.83 

Nature of security     
`

(ii) Issued in 2013

` in lacs

Option Detail Rate of 
Interest

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  -    9,751.97  10,134.78 

Nature of security     
`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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B. Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures - Secured     

(i) Privately Placed  Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of ` 1,000/- each - Unquoted -Retail

Terms of repayment as at March 31, 2019 : NIL

Terms of repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs

Redeemable at par within (from the date of balance 
sheet date)

Rate of interest

< 10% >= 10% < 
12%

>= 12% < 
14% Total

Total 3.47 635.60 0.53 639.60

Terms of repayment as at April 01, 2017

` in lacs

Redeemable at par within (from the date of balance 
sheet date)

Rate of interest

< 10% >= 10% < 
12%

>= 12% < 
14% Total

Total  45.44  3,415.32  1,986.05  5,446.81 

Nature of security     

(ii) Privately Placed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture -Institutional

Details of Privately Placed Redeemable Non-Convertible Debenture (NCDs) of  ` 1,000,000/- each - Quoted

` in lacs

Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 
01, 2017

Redemption 
Date

Total  4,15,327.57 2,75,499.79  1,57,520.35 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Nature of security     

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Term Loan from Bank in foreign currency-Secured

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment 
details Total Amount

`

Nature of Security    

Term Loan from Bank in Indian currency-Secured
Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Total Amount

 

 

Total  10,30,113.22 

Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Total Amount

 

 

 

Total  10,15,806.16 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at April 01, 2017

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Total Amount

 

Total  8,00,903.88 
Nature of Security

Term Loan from Bank in Indian currency-Unsecured

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment 
details Total Amount

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs

Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment 
details Total Amount

Terms of Repayment  as at April 01,2017 : ` Nil.
Term Loan from Institution-Secured
Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Total Amount

Total  31,412.90 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Total Amount

Total  49,782.31 

Nature of Security

Terms of Repayment as at April 01, 2017

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Total Amount

Total  82,123.06 
Nature of security    

Commercial Papers-Unsecured

` in lacs

Rate of Interest Repayment 
details

As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Total  1,83,541.94  2,28,691.45  1,96,446.31 

Loans repayable on demand-Secured

Cash Credit from Banks

` in lacs

Particulars Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Total  1,72,804.60  1,61,961.46  1,41,284.14 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Working capital Demand loan from Banks

` in lacs

Particulars Rate of Interest As at March 
31, 2019

As at March 
31, 2018

As at April 01, 
2017

Total  76,685.16  81,126.03  33,996.94 

Term loan from banks - ` -Securitisation

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Amount

Total  1,11,251.12 

Nature of security    

Terms of Repayment as at March 31, 2018

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Amount

Total  9,348.73 

Nature of security

Terms of Repayment as at April 1, 2017

` in lacs
Tenor (from the date of Balance Sheet date) Rate of Interest Repayment details Amount

Total  11,139.78 

Nature of security    

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

At 
amortised 

cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total

Deposits

Total  3,11,940.61  -    -   3,11,940.61  3,07,365.15  -    -    3,07,365.15  3,52,136.35  -    -    3,52,136.35 

` ` `

Details of Public Deposits - Unsecured
Terms of Repayment as at March 31,2019

` in lacs
Redeemable at par within  
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date)

Rate of interest
>= 6% < 8% >= 8% < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  1,30,102.55  1,70,297.55  11,540.51  3,11,940.61 

Terms of Repayment as at March 31,2018
` in lacs

Redeemable at par within  
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date)

Rate of interest
>= 6% < 8% >= 8% < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  1,32,806.22  1,59,500.60  15,058.33  3,07,365.15 
Terms of Repayment as at April 01,2017

` in lacs
Redeemable at par within  
(from the date of Balance Sheet Date)

Rate of interest
>= 6% < 8% >= 8% < 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  51,421.99  1,72,417.89  1,28,296.47  3,52,136.35 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

At 
amortised 

cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total
At 

amortised 
cost

At fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Designated 
at fair 
value 

through 

and loss 
account

Total

Total  65,370.95  -    -    65,370.95  1,17,561.75  -    -   1,17,561.75 1,29,475.58  -    -    1,29,475.58 

Total  65,370.95  -    -    65,370.95  1,17,561.75  -    -    1,17,561.75  1,29,475.58  -    -    1,29,475.58 

Terms of repayment as at March 31,2019
(i) Privately Placed Subordinated Debts of ` 1,000/- Each - Unquoted  

` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

>= 10% < 12% Total

Total  57,685.07  57,685.07 

(ii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of  ` 1,000,000/ each - Quoted

` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

>=10% <12% Total

Total  7,685.88  7,685.88 
As at March 31, 2018
Terms of Repayment

(i) Privately Placed Subordinated Debts of ` 1,000/- Each - Unquoted
` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

< 10% >= 10% < 12% Total

Total  18.45  89,308.68  89,327.13 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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(ii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of  ` 100,000/- each quoted
` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

>=10% <12% Total

Total  20,573.27  20,573.27 

(iii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of ` 1,000,000/ each - Quoted
` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

>= 10% < 12% Total

Total  7,661.35  7,661.35 
As at April 01, 2017
Terms of Repayment
(i) Privately Placed Subordinated Debts of  ` 1,000/- Each - Unquoted 

` in lacs
Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet 
Date)

Rate of interest
< 10% >= 10% < 12% > = 12% Total

Total  2,246.70  96,609.52  2.02  98,858.24 

(ii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of  ` 100,000/- each quoted

` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

>= 10% < 12% Total

Total  22,983.12  22,983.12 

(iii) Privately Placed Subordinared Debts of ` 1,000,000/ each - Quoted

` in lacs

Redeemable at par (from the date of Balance Sheet Date)
Rate of interest

>= 10% < 12% Total

Total  7,634.22  7,634.22 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 

Total  35,521.51  25,919.51  22,429.19 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 Total  2,664.40  2,557.16  1,798.53 

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 Total  1,646.51  1,771.41  2,009.48 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Authorised:

`

`

Total  15,850.00  15,850.00  15,850.00 
Issued share capital

`

Subscribed share capital

`

Paid up (fully paid up)

`

Total Equity 6599.23  6,596.58  6,594.34 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up Equity Shares

`

Total Equity 6599.23  6,596.58  6,594.34 

Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars No. of Shares ` in lacs
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  6,59,65,762  6,596.58 

As at March 31, 2019  6,59,92,262  6,599.23 

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares    
`

` `

` `

` `

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

 | 255

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



immediately preceding the reporting date:

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

` in lacs

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

No. of 
Shares

% holding 
in the class No. of Shares % holding in 

the class No. of Shares % holding 
in the class

Refer note 48 - Capital for the company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Particulars  Amount 
Securities Premium Account
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  1,84,834.52 

As at March 31, 2019  1,84,901.29 

Share Option Outstanding
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018  125.75 

As at March 31, 2019  65.86 

Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
As at April 01, 2017  76,589.68 

As at March 31, 2018  90,332.19 

As at March 31, 2019  1,10,573.29 

Debenture Redemption Reserve
As at April 01, 2017  6,422.54 

As at March 31, 2018  4,486.03 

As at March 31, 2019

General Reserve
As at April 01, 2017  62,697.35 

As at March 31, 2018  73,341.39 

As at March 31, 2019  85,339.27 

Capital Reserve
As at April 01, 2017
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs
Particulars  Amount 
Capital Redemption Reserve
As at April 01, 2017
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Other Comprehensive Income
As at April 01, 2017

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2019

Retained Earnings
As at April 01, 2017  1,64,414.58 

As at March 31, 2018  2,03,321.76 

As at March 31, 2019  2,58,588.75 

Total other equity
As at April 01, 2017
As at March 31, 2018
As at March 31, 2019

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Proposed Dividend on equity shares
` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

The Board proposed dividend on equity shares
 

` `

Total  12,729.14  9,543.43  7,937.00 
Nature and purpose of reserve
Securities Premium Reserve:

Capital Reserve: 

Capital Redemption Reserve:

Debenture Redemption Reserve:

` ` ` 
` ` ` 

General Reserve: 

Statutory Reserve:

Retained earnings:

Other Comprehensive Income:

Share Option Outstanding:

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 
at FVOCI

On Financial 
Assets 

measured at 
Amortised 

cost

Interest 
income on 
Financial 

Assets 

at FVTPL

Total

On 
Financial 

Assets 
measured 
at FVOCI

On Financial 
Assets 

measured at 
Amortised 

cost

Interest 
income on 
securities 

at FVTPL

Total

investments

Total  -    5,95,431.62  626.89 5,96,058.51  -    5,35,636.78  679.71  5,36,316.49 

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  -    212.32 
Revenue from contracts with customers

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Type of Services or Service

Total revenue from contract with customers  -    212.32
Geographical markets

Total revenue from contract with customers  -    212.32
Timing of revenue recognition

Total revenue from contracts with customers  -    212.32

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Contract Balance

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  -    -   

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  1,152.48  956.69 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  1,152.48  956.69 

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  26.16  1,505.31 

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  290.99  224.62 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

On Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at fair value 
through 

 On 
Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

Cost 

Total

On Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at fair value 
through 

On 
Financial 
liabilities 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

Cost

Total

Total  -    2,10,582.87  2,10,582.87  -    1,77,962.39 1,77,962.39 

` in lacs

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

On Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

Fair Value 
through OCI

 On 
Financial 

instruments 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

cost 

Total

On Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

Fair Value 
through OCI

On 
Financial 

instruments 
measured 

at 
Amortised 

cost

Total

Loans

Total  -    11,669.22  11,669.22  -    39,530.98  39,530.98 

based on evaluation stage:

` in lacs

Particulars
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018

 Stage 1 
Collective 

Stage 2 
Collective

Stage 3 
Collective

Total Stage 1 
Collective

Stage 2 
Collective

Stage 3 
Collective

Total

Loans and advances to 

 Total impairment loss  10,666.34  12,453.86 (11,450.98)  11,669.22  18,290.83  (432.48)  21,672.63  39,530.98 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  89,746.95  74,887.49 

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total 3,352.51 3,519.03

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  35,721.28  38,161.62 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Details of CSR expenditure:

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total  851.15  1,403.60 

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total tax charge  53,986.32  39,718.13 

Reconciliation of the total tax charge:

` in lacs

Particulars  Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

 1,54,539.01  1,14,648.13 

`

Total Tax  53,963.17  39,513.80 

 53,986.32  39,718.13 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Deferred Tax

` in lacs

Particulars

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Income 
Statement OCI

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Total  6,857.78  2,134.26  4,442.23  (461.23)

` in lacs

Particulars

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

Income 
Statement OCI

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2018

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Total  11,027.40  2,842.58  78.49  98.81 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars

Deferred Tax 
Assets

Deferred Tax 
Liabilities

As at 
 April 01, 2017

As at 
 April 01, 2017

 

Total  11,145.57  2,783.42 

Amount recognised in respect of current tax/ deferred tax directly in equity:

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at 
 April 01, 2017

Tax losses and Tax credits

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at 
 April 01, 2017

CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at 
 April 01, 2017

`  
` `

Total  5,629.57  4,961.97  6,388.72 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

`

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings per share 
(` in lacs)

dilution (` in lacs)
Earnings per share

`

`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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The details of Series 1 have been summarised below: 

` in lacs

Particulars

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price per 

share (in `)

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price per 

share (in `)

Number of 
Shares

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 
Price per 

share (in `)

` in lacs

As at March 31, 
Range of 

exercise prices 
per share (in `)

No. of options 
outstanding

Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life of 
options (in years)

Weighted average 
Exercise Price 

per share (in `)

2019
2018
2017

STOCK OPTIONS GRANTED     
`

` in lacs
Particulars 2006 2007 2008 2009

`

`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

share by applying the fair value based method is as follows:

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

`

`

`

`

`

Basic (`

Diluted (`

` `

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Details of Employee Stock Option Schemes ESOP Scheme 2016 ESOP Scheme 2013 ESOP Scheme 2013

 

Details of Vesting

Vesting period from the grant date ESOP Scheme 2016 ESOP Scheme 2013 ESOP Scheme 2013

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Details of activity under each plan

ESOP Scheme 2016 ESOP Scheme 2013 ESOP Scheme 2013

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

No. of 
Options

Weighted 
Avg. 

Exercise 
Price

Outstanding as at March 31, 2018  3,35,000  35.00  3,50,000  10.00  -    -   
Vested and exercisable as at March 31, 2018  1,11,667  35.00  1,25,000  10.00  -    -   

Outstanding as at 31 March 2019  -    -    1,80,000  10.00  25,00,000  10.00 

Vesting period from the grant date Year ended   
March 31, 2019

Dividend yield

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended   
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

Total expense arising from share based payment transactions  9.87  4.35 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Name of the subsidiary Country of 
incorporation

Principal 
place of 
business

Principal 
activities 

For the year No of Equity 
% equity 
interestending Shares Held (FV 

of ` 10 /- each)

limited

Controlling Interest as on March 31, 2019

` in lacs

Name of the Entity 

Net Assets, i.e. total 
assets minus total lia-

bilities
Share in Other Compre-
hensive Income/ (Loss)

Share in total Compre-
hensive Income

As % of  
Consolidated 

net assets
Amount

As % of 
Consolidated Amount

As % of 
Consolidated Amount

As % of 
Consolidated Amount

Total 100% 6,68,984.57 100%  1,00,552.69 100%  (854.62) 100%  99,698.07 

43.1 : Shriram City Union Finance Limited

` `

` `

` ` `

`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Interest Risk:

Salary Risk:

Investment Risk:

Asset Liability Matching Risk:

Mortality Risk:

Concentration Risk:

      

Compensated absences 

`
`

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended   
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

 460.82  645.80 
Remeasurement of gains/(losses) in other comprehensive income :

income (B)
 1,404.93  (277.18)

Total (A+B)  1,865.75  368.62 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Change in the obligation during the year ended

 4,809.03  3,045.11 
Change in the Fair value of plan assets :

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  4,674.89  2,248.63 

` in lacs

Particulars
As at  

March 31, 
2019

As at  
March 31, 

2018

As at  
April 01,  

2017

 134.14  796.48  427.87 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

 Investments quoted in active markets: 

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Total  4,674.89  2,248.63  2,305.07 

Sensitivity Analysis

` in lacs

Assumptions  Discount rate  Future salary 
increases Attrition rate

 1% 
increase 

 1% 
decrease 

1% 
increase 

 1% 
decrease 

 1% 
increase 

 1% 
decrease 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

 | 275

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



` in lacs
Expected payment for future years March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Total expected payments ( Undiscounted )  14,103.28  9,200.04 
` 

Asset Liability Matching Strategies

43.2 : Shriram Housing Finance Limited

`

` `

`

`

`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March  31, 2018

 45.30  49.28 

Balance Sheet

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

Asset/(liability) recognized in the balance sheet 14.10 (11.03)

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

 144.44  191.06 

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

Closing fair value of plan assets  158.54  180.03 

The company intends to contribute to the trust the amount as per the actuarial valuation  in the next year

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

Amounts for the current period and previous four years are as follows:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015

` in lacs

Assumptions 
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018

 Discount rate  Future salary 
increases  Discount rate  Future salary 

increases 

Sensitivity level 1% 
Increase

1% 
Decrease

1% 
Increase

1% 
Decrease

1% 
Increase

1% 
Decrease

1% 
Increase

1% 
Decrease

` in lacs
Expected payment for future years March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

Total expected payments  115.51  146.28 

The principal assumptions used in determining leave encashment obligations for the Company’s plans are 
shown below:

` in lacs
Particulars March 31, 2019 March  31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017

Within 12 
months

After 12 
months Total Within 12 

months
After 12 
months Total Within 12 

months
After 12 
months Total

Assets

Financial assets

Loans

       

Total assets  15,87,378.77  15,54,455.78  31,41,834.55  14,90,651.44  14,18,914.09 29,09,565.54 13,98,712.18  11,02,556.69  25,01,268.87 

       

Liabilities

Financial Liabilities       

Deposits

Total Liabilities  12,30,044.38  12,42,805.60  24,72,849.98  10,26,978.52  12,99,002.57 23,25,981.10  8,50,201.48  11,29,911.24  19,80,112.72 

Net  3,57,334.39  3,11,650.18  6,68,984.57  4,63,672.92  1,19,911.52  5,83,584.44  5,48,510.70  (27,354.54)  5,21,156.15 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars As at March 
31, 2018 Cash Flows Exchange Other * As at March 

31, 2019
At Amortised Cost

Deposits

Total  23,05,080.77  1,38,067.07  165.46  (501.77)  24,42,811.53 

` in lacs

Particulars As at April 
01, 2017 Cash Flows Exchange Other * As at March 

31, 2018
At Amortised Cost

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars As at April 
01, 2017 Cash Flows Exchange Other * As at March 

31, 2018

Deposits

Total  19,62,512.31  3,41,605.57  -    962.90  23,05,080.77 

(A) Contingent Liabilities

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

d
Total  8,085.95  9,430.29  5,621.67 

`

(B) Commitments not provided for

` in lacs

Commitments not provided for As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

 

(C) Lease Disclosures

As a lessee

Operating Lease :

` `

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Relationship  Name of the party

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Relationship  Name of the party

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated

 | 283

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



Re
la

te
d 

pa
rt

y 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
: 

` i
n 

la
cs

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 
20

18
 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

8 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

8 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

8 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 
20

19
 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 
20

18
 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 
Pa

ym
en

ts
/E

xp
en

se
s

 6
,4

50
.1

2 
 5

,8
41

.1
0 

 -   

 1
,9

44
.8

6 
 1

,7
56

.1
4 

 -   

 1
,2

72
.3

5 
 1

,2
05

.4
0 

 -   

 4
31

.2
3 

 4
00

.3
9 

 -   

 4
77

.0
0 

 2
60

.4
0 

 -   

 4
0.

66
 

 4
1.

05
 

 -   

 5
,4

04
.7

0 
 4

,9
97

.8
4 

 -   

 1
95

.0
9 

 5
92

.4
3 

 -   

 1
,7

54
.5

2 
 1

,6
93

.9
7 

 -   

 -   
 5

3.
75

 
 -   

 

 3
21

.8
3 

 2
81

.0
0 

 -   

 2
9.

61
 

 1
1.

24
 

 -   

 9
.3

9 
 3

5.
93

 
 -   

 1
2.

61
 

 1
.7

4 
 -   

 3
5.

25
 

 4
3.

19
 

 -   
 4

,0
08

.4
0 

 3
,5

63
.0

2 
 -   

 2
,4

15
.9

4 
 2

,1
47

.5
0 

 -   
 1

,1
84

.3
7 

 1
,0

52
.7

7 
 -   

N
ot

es
 

fo
rm

in
g 

pa
rt

 o
f C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

284 |



` i
n 

la
cs

Pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
s

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 
20

18
 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

8 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

8 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

9 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 
31

, 2
01

8 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 
20

19
 

As
 a

t 
M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 
20

18
 

As
 a

t 
Ap

ri
l 0

1,
 

20
17

 
Re

ce
ip

ts
/In

co
m

e
 -   

 -   
 -   

 2
1.

76
 

 1
4.

41
 

 -   
 1

3.
34

 
 4

1.
27

 
 -   

 1
9.

25
 

 1
3.

01
 

 -   
El

ec
tr

ic
ity

, T
el

ep
ho

ne
 

an
d 

ot
he

r c
ha

rg
es

 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 -   

 -   
 -   

 1
1.

23
 

 9
.4

4 
 -   

 1
.9

2 
 1

.0
9 

 -   

 2
7.

29
 

 1
1.

73
 

 -   

Ba
la

nc
e 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

as
 a

t 
 -   

 -   
 -   

 2
,2

26
.8

9 
 2

,2
26

.8
9 

 2
,2

26
.8

9 
 1

,3
42

.1
9 

 1
,3

42
.1

9 
 1

,3
42

.1
9 

 6
57

.9
8 

 6
57

.9
8 

 6
57

.9
8 

 4
,8

72
.0

0 
 4

,8
72

.0
0 

 4
,8

72
.0

0 

 2
26

.4
3 

 2
82

.0
8 

 3
29

.6
2 

 1
83

.1
7 

 1
70

.8
6 

 1
55

.4
3 

 1
,6

88
.4

3 
 1

,4
20

.2
3 

 1
,0

48
.5

9 

 0
.1

4 
 -   

 9
4.

78
 

 -   
 -   

 5
2.

39
 

 6
.3

2 
 1

0.
42

 
 -   

 1
.2

7 
 1

.0
3 

 2
.5

9 

 2
.0

5 
 2

6.
25

 
 -   

 7
.1

3 
 1

41
.8

6 
 1

.0
0 

N
ot

es
 

fo
rm

in
g 

pa
rt

 o
f C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 M

ar
ch

 3
1,

 2
01

9

Consolidated

 | 285

Corporate Overview - 02 - 14 Statutory Reports - 15 - 83 Financial Statements- 84 - 319



CapitalManagement

A. Shriram City Union Finance Limited

` in lacs

Regulatory capital As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total capital funds  6,24,119.48  5,62,083.12  5,28,472.12 

Risk weighted assets (` in lacs)  26,99,007.39  26,30,717.17  22,20,176.11 

Total capital ratio 23.12% 21.37% 23.81%
`

`

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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B. Shriram Housing Finance Limited

` in lacs

Regulatory capital As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
April 01, 2017

Total capital funds  46,887.26  45,270.56  42,285.94 

Risk weighted assets (` in lacs)  1,56,629.53  1,37,117.92  1,46,055.97 

Total capital ratio 29.94% 33.02% 28.95%
`

`

assets

49.1 Valuation Principle     

49.2 Fair Value Hierarchy of assets and liabilities

As at March 31, 2019     
` in lacs

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3  Total 

 10,603.97  42,221.73  80.04  52,905.74 
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  10,603.97  42,221.73  80.04  52,905.74 

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 

 297.39  -    -    297.39 

recurring basis
 297.39  -    -    297.39 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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49.3 Valuation techniques

Equity instruments

Mutual Funds

Foreign exchange contracts

As at March 31, 2018
` in lacs

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3  Total 

 9,516.15  10,243.11  50.67  19,809.93 
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  9,516.15  10,243.11  50.67  19,809.93 

As at April 01, 2017
` in lacs

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  Level-1  Level-2  Level-3  Total 

 8,608.01  9,214.51  1,047.67  18,870.19 
Total assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis  8,608.01  9,214.51  1,047.67  18,870.19 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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liabilities measured at fair value:

` in lacs

Particulars
Equity instruments

As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Opening Balance  50.67  1,047.67 

Closing Balance  80.04  50.67 
Unrealised gains and losses related to balances held at the end of the year  29.37  -   

` in lacs
 Fair value 

 Level 3 
assets  

 Level 3 
liabilities  Valuation 

technique unobservable 
inputs  As at March 

31, 2019 
 As at March 

31, 2019 
Based on the 

` in lacs
 Fair value 

 Level 3 
assets  

 Level 3 
liabilities  Valuation 

technique unobservable 
inputs  As at March 

31, 2018
 As at March 

31, 2018
Based on the 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

As at March 31, 2019  Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value
 Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans

30,53,721.97  1,01,864.67  30,334.27 29,18,162.81 30,50,361.75 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

24,68,539.07  -   20,50,020.26  4,33,681.37 24,83,701.63 

 6,707.4  -    -    6,707.4  6,707.4 

49.5 Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable market data

` in lacs
 As at March 31, 2019  As at March 31, 2018 

 Favourable 
changes 

 Unfavourable 
changes 

 Favourable 
changes 

 Unfavourable 
changes 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

As at March 31, 2018  Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value
 Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans

28,56,709.67  36,567.51  20,202.26 28,45,002.87 29,01,772.64 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

23,21,652.53  -   18,64,184.18  5,52,324.74 24,16,508.92 
Other commitments  8,531.2  8,531.2  8,531.2 

 8,531.2  -    -    8,531.2  8,531.2 

` in lacs

 As at April 01, 2017  Carrying 
Amount 

Fair Value
 Level-1  Level-2  Level-3 Total

Financial assets:

Loans

24,54,824.64  43,751.06  -   24,21,278.73 24,65,029.79 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits

19,76,304.70  -   14,70,205.23  6,13,850.15 20,84,055.38 

 14,396.6  -    -    14,396.6  14,396.6 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Loans and advances to customers

Financial assets at amortised cost 

Issued debt

Borrowings

Fair Value Measurement - Non-Financial assets

` in lacs

Particulars
 Fair value 

As at 31, 
March 2019

As at 31, 
March 2018

As at 01,  
April 2017

Total  7,927.96  5,557.96  888.79 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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50.1.1 Risk management structure

50.1.2 Risk mitigation and risk culture 

50.1.3 Risk measurement and reporting systems

50.1.4 Excessive risk concentration

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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The Group’s internal credit rating grades on days past due (dpd) basis:
Internal rating grade Internal rating description

50.2.2 Impairment assessment

50.2 Credit Risk

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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50.2.2.2 PD estimation process

50.2.2.3 Exposure at Default (EAD)

50.2.2.4 Loss Given Default (LGD) 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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50.2.3 Analysis of risk concentration
`

`

Credit risk exposure analysis

` in lacs

Particulars
 March 31, 2019

 Stage 1 
Collective 

 Stage 2 
Collective  Stage 3  POCI  Total 

30,75,144.78 
 1,181.52 

Total 23,34,566.73  4,78,925.81  2,62,833.76  -   30,76,326.30 

50.3 Liquidity risk and funding management

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2019:
` in lacs

Particulars  Less than 
3 months 

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

 Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 
years 

 Over 5 
years  Total 

Financial assets  -   
 1,32,458.33 

 17,881.47 

Loans  40,14,634.73 
 44,629.50 

 5,188.50 
 31,050.73 

 3,442.49 

assets
 6,34,851.31  5,02,137.75  8,95,135.72  12,68,229.25  4,66,124.77  4,82,806.95  42,49,285.75 

Financial liabilities
 297.39 

Deposits  3,59,518.79 
 5,11,646.72 

 18,45,634.76 

 71,450.09 
 35,458.51 

 6,764.54 

liabilities
 5,25,069.44  2,97,970.22  5,48,349.00  12,26,973.40  2,26,314.02  6,094.72  28,30,770.80 

assets/(liabilities)
 1,09,781.87  2,04,167.53  3,46,786.72  41,255.85  2,39,810.75  4,76,712.23  14,18,514.95 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on March 31, 2018:
` in lacs

Particulars  Less than 3 
months 

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

 Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 
years 

 Over 5 
years  Total 

Financial assets
 55,843.95 

 2,303.10 

Loans  38,88,840.60 
 54,965.36 

 10,139.07 
 9,889.10 
 1,883.85 

assets
5,49,729.05  4,62,367.33  9,43,280.94  11,56,578.96  5,02,116.53  4,09,792.22  40,23,865.04 

Financial liabilities
-

Deposits  3,47,250.55 
 3,62,141.04 

 17,69,305.38 

 1,35,663.33 
 25,908.59 

 7,969.48 

liabilities
 2,85,728.80  1,39,089.61  7,26,614.72  12,06,909.50  2,80,425.52  9,470.22  26,48,238.36 

assets/(liabilities)
 2,64,000.25  3,23,277.72  2,16,666.22  (50,330.56)  2,21,691.01  4,00,322.00  13,75,626.68 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

298 |



Maturity pattern of assets and liabilities as on April 01, 2017:
` in lacs

Particulars  Less than 3 
months 

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

 Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year 

 Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years 

 Over 3 
years & 
upto 5 
years 

 Over 5 
years  Total 

Financial assets
 67,087.56 

 1,800.48 

Loans  32,58,683.12 
 54,018.02 

 8,669.55 
 9,950.27 
 3,395.22 

assets
5,12,198.22  4,00,612.68  8,57,119.19  8,91,999.85  4,02,284.74  3,39,389.54  34,03,604.22 

Financial liabilities     
 -   

Deposits  3,95,713.41 
 2,44,577.06 

 14,53,001.05 

 1,61,532.86 
 22,458.76 

 3,925.68 

liabilities
 2,49,716.61  1,66,277.08  5,16,649.56  10,48,241.42  2,86,194.36  14,129.79  22,81,208.83 

assets/(liabilities)
 2,62,481.61  2,34,335.61  3,40,469.63 (1,56,241.57)  1,16,090.37  3,25,259.75  11,22,395.40 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs

Particulars Less than 
3 months

Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months

Over 6 
months 
& upto 1 

year

Over 5 
years  Total 

As at March 31, 2019 

Total commitments 1676.85 2347.59 2916.53 8085.95 15026.92
As at March 31, 2018  

 Total commitments 2131.61 2989.04 3715.9 9430.29 18266.84

As at April 01, 2017  

 Total commitments 3587.45 5069.23 5859.28 5621.67 20137.63

50.4 Market Risk

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Exemptions applied: 

 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Estimates:

 

 

Equity reconciliation for 1 April 2017

` in lacs
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Loans 

Total (A)  26,02,658.53  (1,28,963.68)  24,73,694.84 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

Total (B)  23,834.66  3,739.36  27,574.03 
Total Assets (A+B)  26,26,493.19  (1,25,224.32)  25,01,268.87 

Liabilities and equity 
Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Deposits

Total (C)  19,71,606.90  4,697.80  19,76,304.70 

Total (D)  1,26,220.46  (1,22,412.45)  3,808.01 
Total Liabilities (C+D)  20,97,827.36  (1,17,714.65 )  19,80,112.71 

Total equity  5,28,665.83  (7,509.67 )  5,21,156.16 
Total liabilities and equity  26,26,493.19  (1,25,224.32 )  25,01,268.87 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Equity reconciliation for 31 March 2018
` in lacs

Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS 
Financial Assets 

Loans 

Total (A)  30,40,123.67  (1,63,604.08)  28,76,519.59 

Total (B)  31,702.90  1,343.05  33,045.95 
Total Assets (A+B)  30,71,826.57  (1,62,261.03)  29,09,565.54 

Liabilities and equity 
Liabilities 
Financial liabilities 

Deposits

Total (C)  23,16,497.98  5,154.55  23,21,652.53 

Total (D)  1,69,997.33  (1,65,668.76)  4,328.57 
Total Liabilities (C+D)  24,86,495.31  (1,60,514.21)  23,25,981.10 

Total equity  5,85,331.26  (1,746.82)  5,83,584.44 
Total liabilities and equity  30,71,826.57  (1,62,261.03)  29,09,565.54 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` in lacs
Particulars Previous GAAP Adjustments Ind AS
Revenue from operations

Dividend income

Total revenue from operations  5,36,902.44  6,769.58  5,43,672.02 

Total Income  5,37,104.19  6,792.45  5,43,896.64 

Expenses

Total expenses  4,30,977.03  (1,728.52)  4,29,248.51 

 1,06,127.16  8,520.97  1,14,648.13 

 1,06,127.16  8,520.97  1,14,648.13 

 69,370.18  5,559.82  74,930.00 
Other comprehensive income

Subtotal (A)  -    186.25  186.25 

Subtotal (B)  -    -   
Other Comprehensive Income  -   - -
Total comprehensive income  69,370.18  5,746.07  75,116.25 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Note 
Reference

Previous 
GAAP as at  
March 31, 

2018 

Adjustments
Ind AS as at  
March 31, 

2018 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (9,785.99)  (1.65)  (9,787.64)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  43,749.38  43,751.06 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  33,963.39  33,963.42 

` in lacs

Particulars As at  
March 31,  2019

As at  
March 31,  2018

As at  
April 1,  2017

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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` ` 

`

liabilities

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

(1) Value of investments

(2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments

61.1 Forward rate agreement/Interest rate swap

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019 

 As at  
March 31, 2018 

61.2 Exchange Traded interest rate (IR) derivatives : Nil

61.3 Disclosures on risk exposure of derivatives

Qualitative disclosures

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Quantitative Disclosures

` in lacs
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

Particulars Currency 
derivatives 

Interest rate 
derivatives

 Currency 
derivatives  

 Interest rate 
derivatives 

62.1 Shriram City Union Finance Limited

` in lacs
Rating 
Agency Rating Instrument As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

62.2. Shriram Housing Finance Limited

` in lacs
Rating 
Agency Rating Instrument As at  

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs

S.no Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Residential Mortgages -

Commercial Real Estate -

Investments   in   Mortgage   Backed   Securities(MBS) and other 
securitised exposures -

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector

` in lacs

S.no Particulars As at  
March 31, 2019

As at  
March 31, 2018

Total exposure to capital market  51,088.68  53,060.39 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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NBFC

A. Shriram City Union Finance Limited

` in lacs
Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies' shown under the head Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Year ended 

March 31, 2018

B. Shriram Housing Finance Limited

` in lacs
Break up of 'Provisions and contingencies' shown under the head Year ended 

March 31, 2019
Year ended 

March 31, 2018

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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`

I. Shriram City Union Finance Limited
a. Concentration of deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs)

` in lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2019

b. Concentration of advances
` in lacs

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

c.Concentration of exposures
` in lacs

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

d. Concentration of NPAs #
` in lacs

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

e. Sector-wise NPAs #

` in lacs
S. 

no. Sector Percentage of NPAs to Total 
Advances in that sector

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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II. Shriram Housing Finance Limited
(i) Concentration of Public Deposits (for Public Deposit taking/holding HFCs)

` in lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2019

(ii) Concentration of Loans & Advances

` in lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2019

` in lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2019

(iv) Concentration of NPAs

` in lacs
Particulars As at March 31, 2019

(v) Sector-wise NPAs

` in lacs

Sl. 
No. Sector

Percentage of NPAs to 
Total Advances in that 

sector

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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` in lacs
Sl. 
No. Particulars  As at  

March 31, 2019
 As at  

March 31, 2018

`

`

70.2 Movement of NPAs #

A. Shriram City Union Finance Limited

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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B. Shriram Housing Finance Limited

` in lacs

Particulars  As at  
March 31, 2019

 As at  
March 31, 2018

ACCOUNTING NORMS)

` in lacs

Particulars Year ended 
March 31, 2019

Year ended 
March 31, 2018

` `

` `

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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Vide DNBS. PD. CC NO. 256/03.10.042/2011-12 dated 02 MARCH, 2012

I. Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2019:

` in lacs

Particulars 
Less than 

` 1 lacs ` 1 to 25 lacs Greater than 
 ` 25 lacs Total

Number Value Number Value Number Value Number Value
A) Person involved

Total  -    -    1  12.40  -    -    -    -   
B) Type of Fraud

accounts

Total  -    -    1  12.40  -    -    -    -   

II. Shriram Housing Finance Limited

Instances of fraud for the year ended March 31, 2019: Nil

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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As at March 31, 2019
` in lacs

Particulars Upto 30/31 
Days

Over 1 
month 
upto 2 

Months

Over 2 
months 

upto 
3months

Over 
3 months 
& up to 6 
months

Over 
6 Months 
& up to 1 

year

Over 
1 year 

& up to 3 
years

Over 
3 years 

& up to 5 
years

Over 
5 years Total

Deposits (includes 

assets

As at March 31, 2018
` in lacs

Particulars Upto 30/31 
Days

Over 1 
month 
upto 2 

Months

Over 2 
months 

upto 
3months

Over 
3 months 
& up to 6 
months

Over 
6 Months 
& up to 1 

year

Over 
1 year 

& up to 3 
years

Over 
3 years 

& up to 5 
years

Over 
5 years Total

Deposits (includes 

assets

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For G D Apte & Co Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Umesh S Abhyankar Duruvasan Ramachandra  Venkataraman Murali 

 C R Dash  R Chandrasekar 

` `

` in lacs

Particulars  As at 31  
March 2019

 As at 31  
March 2018

Balance at the beginning of the year

Addition / Appropriation / Withdrawal during the period

Balance at the end of the period

c) Total  2,798.69  2,460.70 

Notes 
forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Consolidated
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Notes





Shriram City Union Finance Ltd.
www.shriramcity.in



SHRIRAM CITY UNION FINANCE LIMITED
CIN: L65191TN1986PLC012840
Regd. office: 123, Angappa Naicken Street, Chennai 600 001, Tamil Nadu
Telephone No + 91 44 2534 1431
Secretarial Office: 144, Santhome High Road, Mylapore, Chennai-600 004, Tamil Nadu 
Telephone No +91 44 4392 5300
Website: www.shriramcity.in ; Email: sect@shriramcity.in

NOTICE OF THE THIRTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
Notice is hereby given that Thirty Third Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Shriram City Union 
Finance Limited, Corporate Identification Number - 
L65191TN1986PLC012840 (“Company”) will be held on 
Monday, July 29, 2019 at  10 a m at Narada Gana Sabha 
(Mini Hall), No 314, T T K Road, Alwarpet, Chennai 600 
018 to transact the following business. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Item no - 1 : Adoption of standalone financial 
statements
To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2019 together with the Reports of 
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements 
(Standalone) of the Company for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2019, together with the Reports of the Board 
of Directors and the Auditors thereon laid before this 
annual general meeting, be and are hereby considered 
and adopted.”

Item no - 2 : Adoption of consolidated financial 
statements
To receive, consider and adopt the audited consolidated 
financial statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31, 2019 together with the report of 
the Auditors thereon.
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements 
(consolidated) of the Company for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2019, together with the Report of the 
Auditors laid before this annual general meeting, be and 
are hereby considered and adopted.”

Item no - 3 : Declaration of dividend
(i)	 To declare final dividend of  ` 16.00 per equity share 

of  ` 10 each of the Company. 
“RESOLVED THAT the Members of the Company declare 
and authorise payment of final dividend of ` 16.00 
(Rupees Sixteen only) per equity share of face value of 
` 10 each for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 to 

those Members whose names appeared in the Register of 
Members or who were beneficial owners of equity shares 
of the Company as on the record date being July 22, 2019.
(ii)	 To confirm the interim dividend declared @ ` 6.00 

per equity share of  ` 10 each of the Company and 
paid during the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

“RESOLVED THAT the Members of the Company 
record and confirm payment of  Interim Dividend of  
` 6.00 (Rupees six only) per equity share of face value 
of ` 10 each aggregating to an amount of ` 39,59,06,292 
(Rupees Thirty nine crores fifty nine lakhs six thousand 
two hundred and ninety two only)  including total 
dividend distribution tax amount of ` 8,13,79,703/- 
(Rupees Eight crores thirteen lakhs seventy nine thousand 
seven hundred and three only),  for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2019 paid on November 20, 2018.”

Item no – 4 :  Remuneration of Auditors
To fix remuneration of Auditors of the Company 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being 
in force, the Company fixes the remuneration of Auditors 
of the Company, M/s G.D.Apte & Co, Chartered Accountants, 
Firm Registration No-100515W (“GDA”) for FY 2019-20 
who were appointed as the Auditors of the Company  
to hold office from the conclusion of the 31st Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 36th 
Annual General Meeting to an amount totalling to  
` 30,25,000/- (Rupees Thirty lakhs and twenty five 
thousand only)  excluding reimbursement of expenses, 
applicable taxes, remuneration for other services 
provided and subject to deduction of applicable taxes 
at source as recommended by the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee to the Board of Directors”. 
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item no - 5 :  Director retires by rotation 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION.
“RESOLVED THAT Sri Gerrit Lodewyk Van Heerde 
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(holding Director Identification Number - 06870337), who 
retires as a Director of the Company by rotation at this 
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and who has expressed 
his desire not to be re-appointed as a Director, shall not be                          
re-appointed and the resulting vacancy not be filled in at 
this AGM or at adjourned meeting thereof.” 

Item no – 6 : Appointment  of  Sri C R Muralidharan 
(DIN- 02443277) as an Independent Director 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION.
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 
149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Articles of 
Association of the Company and Regulation  19 (4) read 
with Part D of Schedule II of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”), as amended 
from time to time. Sri C R Muralidharan (Director 
Identification Number – 02443277) who was appointed 
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from  April 1, 2019 by the Board of Directors pursuant to 
Section 161 (1)  of the  Act  to hold office upto this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company  and as recommended 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
who has declared his independence in terms of Section 
149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of LODR and 
expressed his desire to act as a Director, if appointed in 
respect of whom the Company has received notice in 
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act,  
proposing the candidature of  Sri C R Muralidharan for 
the office of Director be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company to hold office upto  
March 31, 2022  not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item no – 7 : Appointment  of  Sri Diwakar Bhagwati 
Gandhi (DIN- 00298276) as an Independent Director 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION.
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 
149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Articles of 

Association of the Company and Regulation  19 (4) read 
with Part D of Schedule II of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”), as amended 
from time to time, Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi (Director 
Identification Number – 00298276) who was appointed 
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from  
April 1, 2019 by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 
161 (1)  of the  Act to hold office upto this Annual General 
Meeting of the Company  and as recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who has 
declared his independence in terms of Section 149 (6) of 
the Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of LODR and expressed 
his desire to act as a Director, if appointed  in respect 
of whom the Company has received notice in writing 
from a member under Section 160 of the Act,  proposing 
the candidature of  Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi for 
the office of Director be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company to hold  office upto  
March 31, 2024  not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item no – 8 : Appointment  of  Sri Pranab Prakash 
Pattanayak (DIN- 00506007) as an Independent 
Director 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION.
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
section 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification 
of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force), Articles of Association of the Company 
and Regulation  19 (4) read with Part D of Schedule 
II of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR”), as amended from time to time, Sri Pranab 
Prakash Pattanayak (Director Identification Number - 
00506007) who was appointed as an Additional Director 
of the Company with effect from  April 1, 2019 by the 
Board of Directors pursuant to Section 161 (1)  of the  
Act  to hold office upto this Annual General Meeting of 
the Company and as recommended by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and who has declared his  
independence in terms of Section 149 (6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16 (1) (b) of LODR and expressed his desire to 
act as a Director and in respect of whom the Company 
has received notice in writing from a member under 
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Section 160  of the Act,  proposing the candidature of  
Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak for the office of Director 
be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director 
of the Company to hold office for the second term upto 
March 31, 2023  not liable to retire by rotation.”

Item no – 9 : Appointment  of  Sri Venkataraman 
Murali (DIN-00730218) as an Independent Director 
To consider if thought fit, to pass the following resolution 
as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION.
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 
149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), Articles of 
Association of the Company and Regulation  19 (4) read 
with Part D of Schedule II of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”),  as amended 
from time to time, Sri Venkataraman Murali (Director 
Identification Number – 00730218) who was appointed 
as an Additional Director of the Company with effect 
from  April 1, 2019 by the Board of Directors pursuant to 
Section 161 (1)  of the  Act  to hold office upto this Annual 
General Meeting of the Company and as recommended 
by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
who has declared his independence in terms of Section 
149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of LODR and 
expressed his desire to act as a Director, if appointed in 
respect of whom the Company has received notice in 
writing from a member under Section 160 of the Act,  
proposing the candidature of  Sri Venkataraman Murali 
for the office of Director be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company to hold office for 
the second term  upto March 31, 2024   not liable to retire 
by rotation.”

Item no - 10  : Borrowing Powers of the Board  
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 
resolutions as SPECIAL RESOLUTION (S).
“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the special 
resolutions passed at the 32nd Annual General Meeting 
of the Company held on July 25, 2018 and pursuant to 
section 180 (1) (c), section 42, 62, 71 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) 
and relevant Rules prescribed under the Act, (including 
any statutory modifications and re-enactment thereof 

for the time being in force) applicable regulations of 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Reserve Bank of 
India(“RBI”) and any other applicable regulations, if any, 
the approval  of the Company be and is hereby accorded to 
the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter called 
“Board”, which term shall be deemed to include any duly 
authorised Committee thereof, which the Board may have 
constituted or hereinafter constitute from time to time by 
whatever name called to exercise it’s power including 
the power conferred by this resolution) to borrow for 
the purpose of the business of the Company from time to 
time any sum(s) of money(ies), long term  or short term, 
fund based or non-fund based, in Indian Rupee or in any 
foreign currency, unsecured or secured by mortgage, 
charge, hypothecation, lien, pledge or otherwise of the 
Company’s assets and properties for and on behalf of 
the Company by way of loan(s),  financial assistance(s), 
commercial paper(s), senior note(s), rupee denominated 
bonds, off shore markets, issuance of bond(s), in whatever 
name called from bank(s), banking company(ies), 
financial institution(s), body (ies) corporate(s), person(s)  
by way of invitation, offer, issue and allotment of 
redeemable non convertible debenture(s), subordinated 
debenture(s)/debt(s), security(ies), debt security(ies), 
commercial papers, rupee denominated bond(s), foreign 
currency notes/ bonds, external commercial borrowings 
as permissible under regulations of RBI or other 
regulations, any paper(s), any other eligible security(ies)/
instrument(s) convertible or non convertible or partly 
convertible, in one or more tranches on private placement 
basis (within the overall limit of borrowing power 
conferred on the Board by the members) not exceeding  
` 10,000 crores (Rupees Ten Thousand crores)  as well 
as by  public issue to or from any eligible investors or 
lenders or  Entity(ies) [the term “Entity” shall be deemed 
to include, individuals, persons, Banks, Institutional 
Investors, Foreign Institutional Investors (“FIIs”), Foreign 
Portfolio Investors (“FPIs”), Qualified Institutional 
Buyers (“QIBs”), Financial Institutions (“FIs”), Statutory 
Corporations, Statutory Bodies, Trusts, Provident Funds, 
Pension Funds, Superannuation Funds, Gratuity Funds, 
Alternate Investment Funds, Insurance Companies, 
Companies, Societies, Educational Institutions, Association 
of Persons, Body of Individuals, Scientific and Research 
Organisations/Associations, Partnerships, Firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships, Resident Individuals, Non Resident 
Individuals (“NRIs”), High Net worth Individuals (“HNIs”), 
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Hindu Undivided Families (“HUFs”), Shareholders, 
Members, Employees, Director(s)/Key Managerial 
Personnel(s) (“KMP”)(s), relation(s) of Director(s)/ KMP(s), 
Related Party(ies) any person/institution as the Board may 
decide from time to time] separately or any combination 
thereof by any permissible methods as the Board may 
decide including but not limited to shelf prospectus, 
prospectus, information memorandum, shelf disclosure 
document, offer document, any other document or 
otherwise AND by way of acceptance/renewal of deposits/
loans from any or all of the Entity(ies) referred above, any 
combination thereof by complying the regulations of RBI 
or Act as applicable AND by way of any other permissible 
instruments or methods of borrowings on such terms and 
conditions as the Board may deem fit notwithstanding 
that the monies to be borrowed together with the monies 
already borrowed by the Company, apart from temporary 
loans obtained and/or to be obtained from the Company’s 
bankers in the ordinary course of business will or may 
exceed the aggregate of the paid up share capital, free 
reserves and securities premium of the Company  so that 
the total amount borrowed and outstanding at any point 
of time  shall not exceed ` 40,000 crores (Rupees Forty 
thousand crores).
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving 
effect to the foregoing resolution and without being 
required to seek further consent or approval of the 
Members or otherwise for this purpose that they shall be 
deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by 
authority of this resolution, the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things to 
give effect to the aforesaid resolution, settle and clarify 
any question or difficulty, finalise the form, content, 
extent and manner of documents and deeds, whichever 
applicable and execute all deeds, documents, instruments 
and writing, for the purpose mentioned in the aforesaid 
resolution  in consultation with the Entities referred in 
aforesaid resolution and for reserving the aforesaid 
right.” 

By Order of the Board
For Shriram City Union Finance Limited

Place : Chennai C R Dash
Date : April 24, 2019 Company Secretary

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5
In accordance with Section 152 (6) of the Act, Sri Gerrit 
Lodewyk Van Heerde (holding DIN 06870337), shall retire 
by rotation at the ensuing AGM. He has expressed that 
he shall not be in a position to continue his directorship 
in the Company in the forthcoming years. The Company 
does not propose to fill-in the vacancy at the ensuing AGM 
or at any adjournment thereof. Pursuant to provisions of 
Section 152 of the Act, a resolution is proposed accordingly. 
Except Sri Gerrit Lodewyk Van Heerde, no other director, 
key managerial personnel and relative's thereof is 
concerned or interested in this Resolution. The Board of 
Directors recommend passing of the Resolution set out in 
item no - 5 of the Notice as an ordinary resolution.

Item No. 6
The Board of Directors of the Company based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee by way of circular resolution dated April 1, 
2019 appointed Sri C R Muralidharan (DIN – 02443277) 
as an Additional Director in accordance with the Articles 
of Association, Policy on Appointment, Remuneration 
and Diversity of Board and Section 161 of the Act from 
April 1, 2019.  As per Section 161 of the Act, Sri C R 
Muralidharan holds office upto the date of the 33rd AGM.  
The Company has received requisite notice in writing 
from a member under Section 160 (1) of the Act signifying 
the candidature of Sri C R Muralidharan to be appointed 
as an Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation. 
Sri C R Muralidharan has consented by way of form DIR-
2 (in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies Appointment & 
Qualification of Directors Rules, 2014) and declared as 
qualified by way of form DIR-8 for such appointment and 
has declared that he meets the criteria of independence 
prescribed under Regulation 16 (1) (b) of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“LODR”), 
amended from time to time. Sri C R Muralidharan is 
independent of the management, possesses requisite 
knowledge, experience and skill for the position of 
Director and fulfils the condition for appointment as 
an independent director as specified in the Act and 
the LODR. Sri C R Muralidharan meets the criteria of 
fit and proper for directorship as prescribed under 
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - 
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Systemically Important Non Deposit taking Company 
and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016. The Board on receipt of the said notice from a 
member and on the recommendation of it’s Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and subject to approval 
of members in this AGM, has accorded its consent, to 
appoint Sri C R Muralidharan as an Independent Director 
not liable to retire by rotation upto March 31, 2022. He 
would continue on the Board as a director based on his 
performance evaluation. 
The Board considers the continuance of his directorship 
in the Company will be of immense benefit to the 
Company in view of his knowledge and experience in 
regulatory affairs, banking, risk management and Non 
Banking Finance.  His directorship is in the interest of the 
Company. 
Copy of the appointment letter issued by the Company to 
Sri C R Muralidharan stating  the terms and conditions 
of his appointment in the Company as an independent 
director can be inspected at the registered office of the 
Company. The format of appointment letter issued to 
Directors  is posted on the website of the Company 
at https://www.nseprimeir.com/z_SHRIRAMCIT/
pdf-files/Terms_and_conditions_of_appointment_of_
Independent_Direcors.zip 
The profile and other directorships of Sri C R Muralidharan 
are as under.
Brief Profile  
Sri C R Muralidharan, (holding Director Identification 
Number - 02443277) holds a Degree in Science from 
the University of Madras and is a certified associate 
of Indian Institute of Bankers and holds certificate in 
Industrial Finance of the Indian Institute of Bankers. A 
career spanning nearly four decades in supervision and 
regulation of the banking and insurance sectors – two 
significant segments of the Indian financial sector. An 
experience in both operational and executive capacities 
in both sectors involving their opening to greater 
competition, aligning their regulatory and supervisory 
frameworks to international standards and consolidation, 
requiring careful sequencing and co-ordinating with the 
overall financial sector and economic reform process.  A 
long stint as an Executive at senior level in the RBI  with 
Central banking and Bank supervisory responsibilities.  
Key responsibilities in the RBI between 1995 and 2005 
included leading and overseeing major initiatives 

associated with banking sector reforms and liberalisation 
that saw paradigm shift of the Indian banking sector.  
Served as a Whole time Member, a Board level position, 
in the Insurance and Regulatory Development Authority, 
Hyderabad (IRDA) for about 5 years between 2005-09. The 
major responsibilities included oversight of regulatory 
initiatives to align with international standards involving 
significant liaison with the Government, other domestic 
financial regulators (RBI and SEBI) and the International 
Association of Insurance Supervisors (IAIS). He holds  
directorships in 1. GMR Infrastructure Limited, 2. 
Sriman Madhwa Sidhantaonnahini Permanent Nidhi 
Limited and 3. ICICI Prudential Asset Management 
Company Limited. His Chairmanship/ Membership of the 
Committees of other Companies, in which he is a Director, 
are ICICI Prudential AMC Limited : Member - Committee 
of Directors, CSR Committee; Chairman – Investment 
Committee ; Member - Management Committee - Sriman 
Madhwa Sidhantaonnahini Permanent Nidhi Limited
Further details required under Regulation 36 (3) of the 
LODR and Secretarial Standard 2 (General Meeting 
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors) are 
provided in Annexure.
Except Sri. C R Muralidharan, no other Director, Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise 
in the proposed resolution. He is not related to any 
director, inter se of the Company and does not hold any 
share in Company.  The Board of Directors recommend 
passing of the resolution set out in Item No - 6 of the 
Notice as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 7
The Board of Directors of the Company based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee by way of circular resolution passed on April 
1, 2019 appointed Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi (DIN 
– 00298276) as an Additional Director in accordance 
with the Articles of Association, Policy on Appointment, 
Remuneration and Diversity of Board and Section 161 
of the Act from April 1, 2019.  As per Section 161 (b)of 
the Act, Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi holds office upto 
the date of the 33rd AGM.  The Company has received 
requisite notice in writing from a member under 
Section 160 (1) of the Act signifying the candidature of 
Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi to be appointed as an 
Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation.  
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Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi has consented by way 
of form DIR-2 (in terms of  Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014) 
and declared as qualified by way of  form DIR-8  for such 
appointment and has declared that he meets the criteria 
of independence prescribed under Regulation  16 (1) 
(b) of Securities and  Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR”), as amended from time to time. Sri Diwakar 
Bhagwati Gandhi is independent of the management, 
possesses requisite knowledge, experience and skill 
for the position of Director and fulfils the condition for 
appointment as an independent director as specified 
in the Act and the LODR Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi 
meets the criteria of fit and proper for directorship 
as prescribed under Master Direction - Non-Banking 
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non Deposit 
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016. The Board on receipt of the said 
notice from a member and on the recommendation of it’s 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject 
to approval of members in this AGM, has accorded its 
consent, to appoint Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi as an 
Non-Executive and Independent Director not liable to 
retire by rotation upto March 31, 2024. He would  continue 
on the Board as a director based on his performance 
evaluation. 
The Board considers the continuance of his directorship 
in the Company will be of  immense benefit to the 
Company in view of his knowledge and experience in 
capital markets, investment banking, strategic planning 
and business development. His directorship is in the 
interest of the Company.
Copy of the appointment letter issued by the Company 
to Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi stating the terms and 
conditions of his appointment in the Company as an 
independent director can be inspected at the registered 
office of the Company. The format of appointment letter 
issued to Directors is posted on the website of the Company 
at https://www.nseprimeir.com/z_SHRIRAMCIT/
pdf-files/Terms_and_conditions_of_appointment_of_
Independent_Direcors.zip
The profile and other directorships of Sri Diwakar 
Bhagwati Gandhi are as under.
Brief Profile 
Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi (holding Director 

Identification Number – 00298276) is a fellow member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
since 1982 and former member of Delhi Stock Exchange 
and United Exchange of India. Sri Gandhi worked with 
different business house of the country and gathered 
first-hand experience of manufacturing heavy machines, 
railway wagon, cotton spinning and steel. He then 
graduated to capital markets as a Merchant Banker. Sri 
Gandhi later on cultivate Investment banking Business. 
The first few successful transactions manifested plunge 
into Private Equity (PE). Sri Gandhi translated four 
decades of domain expertise into a vibrant professional 
organization – the first and foremost with complete 
understanding of the Indian environment from PE 
perspective. Having grown within both industry and 
capital markets over a numerous business cycles of bulls 
and bears. Sri Gandhi articulated the art of sourcing and 
negotiating spectacular PE and M&A deals in Tier- II and 
Tier –III cities across the country. The major endeavours 
are now brought under the umbrella of India Emerging 
Group of Companies. Sri Gandhi also served as a member 
on the Board of Salar Jung Museum, Hyderabad and 
council member on National Culture Fund constituted 
under the Ministry of Culture, Government of India.  He 
holds directorships in 1. Indiaemerging Infrastructure 
Pvt Limited 2. Berkshire Land Holdings Pvt Limited 3. 
Milford Land Holdings Pvt Limited 4. Pinkton Hotels 
Pvt Limited 5. Riverwood Infrastructure Pvt Limited 6. 
Riverbank Hotels Pvt Limited 7. Emerging Developers Pvt 
Limited 8. A to Z Telecom Pvt Limited 9. Indiaemerging 
Advisors Limited and 10. Mount Arrawali Financial 
Services Pvt Limited. His Chairmanship/ Membership 
of the Committees of other Companies in which he is a 
Director are  : NIL 
Further details required under Regulation 36 (3) of the 
LODR and Secretarial Standard 2 (General Meeting 
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors) are 
provided in Annexure .
Except Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi, no other Director, 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives thereof are interested or concerned financial or 
otherwise in the proposed resolution. He is not related 
to any director, inter se of the Company and does not 
hold any share in the Company. The Board of Directors 
recommend passing of the resolution set out in Item No - 
7 of the Notice as an Ordinary Resolution.
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Item No. 8
Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak was appointed as a Non 
Executive Independent Director for a period of 5 years 
upto March 31, 2019 by the members of the Company 
at the Annual General Meeting held on July 28, 2014. 
The Board of Directors of the Company based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and performance evaluation carried out 
during his directorship in the Company, by way of 
circular resolution passed on April 1, 2019 appointed 
Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak (DIN - 00506007) as 
an Additional Director in accordance with the Articles 
of Association, Policy on Appointment, Remuneration 
and Diversity of Board and Section 161 of the Act from 
April 1, 2019.  As per Section 161 of the Act, Sri Pranab 
Prakash Pattanayak holds office upto the date of the 33rd 
AGM. Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak is eligible to be re-
appointed as an Independent Director for second term 
upto four consecutive years as per Section 149 (10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013.  The Company has received 
requisite notice in writing from a member under 
Section 160 (1) of the Act signifying the candidature of 
Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak to be re-appointed as 
an Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation. 
Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak has consented by way 
of form DIR-2 (in terms of  Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014) 
and declared as qualified by way of  form DIR-8 for such 
appointment  and has declared that he meets the criteria 
of independence prescribed under Regulation 16 (1) 
(b) of Securities and  Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR”), as amended from time to time. Sri Pranab 
Prakash Pattanayak is independent of the management, 
possesses requisite knowledge, experience and skill 
for the position of Director and fulfils the condition for 
appointment as an independent director as specified in 
the Act and the LODR. Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak 
meets the criteria of fit and proper for directorship 
as prescribed under Master Direction - Non-Banking 
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non Deposit 
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016. The Board on receipt of the said 
notice from a member and on the recommendation of it’s 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject 
to approval of members in this AGM, has accorded its 
consent, to appoint Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak as an 
Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation for 
second term upto March 31, 2023. He would continue 

on the Board as a director based on his performance 
evaluation. 
The Board considers the continuance of his directorship in 
the Company will be of immense benefit to the Company 
in view of his knowledge and experience in the areas 
of corporate, retail and international banking, treasury 
management, strategic planning, business development 
and risk management. His directorship is in the interest 
of the Company.
Copy of the appointment letter issued by the Company 
to Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak stating the terms and 
conditions of his appointment in the Company as an 
independent director can be inspected at the registered 
office of the Company. The format of  appointment letter 
issued to Directors is posted on the website of the Company 
at https://www.nseprimeir.com/z_SHRIRAMCIT/
pdf-files/Terms_and_conditions_of_appointment_of_
Independent_Direcors.zip
The profile and other directorships of Sri Pranab Prakash 
Pattanayak are as under.
Brief Profile 
Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak has 37 years of experience 
in Banking and Financial services sector. Prior to 
retirement, he was the Managing Director of State Bank 
of Mysore from 2006 to 2009. He had also held the office 
of the Managing Director of State Bank of Travancore. 
He served as the Dy Managing Director and Chief Credit 
Officer of State Bank of India. During his thirty seven years 
of service in five banks of the State Bank, he held senior 
management positions, both in India and abroad, in areas 
like commercial banking, project finance, international 
banking, funds & treasury operations. He was also 
the Dy. M D and head of SBI Global IT Centre, Belapur. 
During his tenure at State Bank of India, Singapore, as 
Manager Credit and operations, he handled the bank’s 
funding operations, forex settlements, asset liability 
management, trade finance and regulatory compliance. 
He served as Director of SBI Factors Ltd., SBI DFHI Ltd., 
and C- Edge Technologies Ltd.   He holds  directorships in 
: 1. IIFL Asset Management Limited and 2. Falcon Marine 
Exports Limited. His Chairmanship/ Membership of the 
Committees of other Companies in which he is a Director 
: NIL
Further details required under Regulation 36 (3) of the 
LODR and Secretarial Standard 2 (General Meeting 
on  appointment and re-appointment of Directors) are 
provided in Annexure.
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Except Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak, no other Director, 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 
relatives thereof are interested or concerned financially 
or otherwise in the proposed resolution. He is not related 
to any director, inter se of the Company and does not hold 
any share in Company.
The Board of Directors recommend passing of the 
resolution set out in Item No - 8 of the Notice as a Special 
Resolution.

Item No. 9
Sri Venkataraman Murali was appointed as an 
Independent and Non Executive Director for a period 
of 5 years upto March 31, 2019 by the members of the 
Company at the Annual General Meeting held on July 28, 
2014. The Board of Directors of the Company based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and performance evaluation carried out 
during his directorship in the Company,  by way of 
circular resolution passed on April 1, 2019 appointed Sri 
Venkataraman Murali (DIN – 00730218) as an Additional 
Director in accordance with the Articles of Association, 
Policy on Appointment, Remuneration and Diversity of 
Board and Section 161 of the Act from April 1, 2019.  As 
per Section 161 of the Act, Sri Venkataraman Murali holds 
office upto the date of the 33rd AGM.  Sri Venkataraman 
Murali is eligible to be re-appointed as an Independent 
Director for second term upto five consecutive years as 
per Section 149 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013.  The 
Company has received requisite notice in writing from 
a member under Section 160 (1) of the Act signifying 
the candidature of Sri Venkataraman Murali to be re-
appointed as an Independent Director not liable to retire 
by rotation. Sri Venkataraman Murali has consented by 
way of form DIR-2 (in terms of  Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014) 
and declared as qualified by way of  form DIR-8 for such 
appointment and has declared that he meets the criteria 
of independence prescribed under Regulation  16 (1) 
(b) of Securities and  Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR”), as amended from time to time.  
Sri Venkataraman Murali is independent of the 
management, possesses requisite knowledge, experience 
and skill for the position of Director and fulfils the 
condition for appointment as an independent director 
as specified in the Act and the LODR. Sri Venkataraman 

Murali  meets the criteria of fit and proper for directorship 
as prescribed under Master Direction - Non-Banking 
Financial Company - Systemically Important Non Deposit 
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2016. The Board on receipt of the said 
notice from a member and on the recommendation of it’s 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and subject 
to approval of members in this AGM, has accorded its 
consent, to appoint Sri Venkataraman Murali as an 
Independent Director not liable to retire by rotation for 
second term for a period of 5 years upto March 31, 2024. 
He would continue on the Board as a director based on 
his performance evaluation. 
The Board considers the continuance of his directorship in 
the Company will be of immense benefit to the Company 
in view of his knowledge and experience in the areas of  
Finance, Accounts and consultancy. His directorship is in 
the interest of the Company.
Copy of the appointment letter issued by the Company to 
Sri Venkataraman Murali stating the terms and conditions 
of his appointment in the Company as an independent 
director can be inspected at the registered office of the 
Company. The format of appointment letter issued to 
Directors is posted on the website of the Company at  
https://www.nseprimeir.com/z_SHRIRAMCIT/pdf-files/
Terms and_conditions_of_appointment_of_Independent_
Direcors.zip
The profile and other directorships of Sri Venkataraman 
Murali are as under.
Brief profile 
Sri Venkataraman Murali (holding Director Identification 
No 00730218), holds a degree of Bachelor of Commerce 
from the Vivekananda College, Chennai. He is a Fellow 
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
and a Fellow Member of the Institute of Cost Accountants 
of India. He has been awarded Doctorate Honoris Causa 
(D.Litt) for his contribution to accounting and financial 
sector.  Sri V Murali is the Senior Partner of  M/s Victor 
Grace & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai.
He has to his credit more than three decades of experience 
in the areas of Finance, Accounts & Consultancy. He was 
elected to the Southern India Regional Council of The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for 2 terms 
(6 years) for the period from 1998 to 2004 and was its 
Chairman for the year 2002-2003.  He was elected to the 
Central Council of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
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of India for 4 terms (12 years) in succession for the 
period from 2004 to 2016.  He has the unique distinction 
of being elected as Chairman of both The Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and The Institute of Cost 
Accountants of India.  He is presently the elected Regional 
Council Member of The Southern India Regional Council 
of The Institute of Cost Accountants of India for the period 
2015 to 2019 and its immediate Past Chairman for the 
year 2016-2017.
He is the President of the All India Tax Payers’ Association 
(AITPA), President Society of Cost Accountants (SOCA) 
and Past President of Hindustan Chamber of Commerce.  
He has been elected to the Executive committee of 
the International Chamber of Commerce.  He is on the 
governing body of Indian Council of Arbitration and All 
India Organisation for Employers, New Delhi. 
Sri V.Murali was an independent director on the Boards 
of State Bank of Hyderabad, Neyveli Lignite Corporation 
Ltd, Hindustan Insecticides Limited. The Comptroller & 
Auditor General of India, New Delhi had nominated him 
to the Audit Board of Power Finance Corporation Ltd and 
Rural Electrification Corporation Ltd as ‘Technical Expert’. 
The Reserve Bank of India had nominated him as a 
Member of the Co-Ordination Committee for Non-Banking 
Finance Companies (NBFCs) and unincorporated bodies. 

He has been Chairman Board of Studies of The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India and was nominated 
as Chairman of the Committee on Education, Training 
and CPD constituted by the South Asian Federation of 
Accountants (SAFA) which is an Apex body of SAARC. He 
holds directorships in : 1. Witzenmann (India) Private 
Limited   2. Shriram Housing Finance Limited and 3. Take 
Solutions Limited. His Chairmanship/ Membership of the 
Committees of other Companies in which he is a Director 
are Chairman – Audit and Risk Management Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Review 
Committee, Whistle Blower Mechanism Committee 
– Shriram Housing Finance Limited; Member - Audit 
Committee -Take Solutions Limited .
Further details required under Regulation 36 (3) of the 
LODR and Secretarial Standard 2 (General Meeting 
on appointment and re-appointment of Directors) are 
provided in Annexure.
Except Sri Venkataraman Murali, no other Director, Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives 
thereof are interested or concerned financial or otherwise 
in the proposed resolution. He is not related to any 
director, inter se of the Company and does not hold any 
share in Company. The Board of Directors recommend 
passing of the resolution set out in Item No – 9 of the 
Notice as a special Resolution.
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Annexure

Information  required under Regulation 36 (3) of the LODR & SS2

Name of the Director Sri C R 
Muralidharan 

Sri Diwakar 
Bhagwati Gandhi

Sri Pranab Prakash 
Pattanayak

Sri Venkataraman 
Murali                                        

Citizenship Indian Indian Indian Indian
Date of Birth/ Age November 4, 1947/ 

71 yrs
August 3, 1958/ 
60 yrs

January 7, 1949/
70 yrs 

November 15, 1959/ 
59 yrs

DIN 02443277 00298276 00506007 00730218
Date of first 
appointment on the 
Board of Directors

April 1, 2019 April 1, 2019 October 31, 2012 December 1, 2011

Qualifications B Sc., CAIIB FCA M A B Com, FCA, FCMA, 
D.Litt

Nature of Expertise 
in specific functional 
areas

Regulatory affairs, 
Banking, 
Risk Management 
and Non Banking 
Finance 

Capital markets, 
investment 
banking and 
private equity

Corporate, retail 
and international banking, 
treasury management, 
strategic planning, 
business development and  risk 
management 

Finance, Accounts 
and related 
consultancy

Number of  Meetings  
attended

NA NA 3 4 

Shareholding in the 
Company

Nil Nil Nil Nil

Remuneration Paid 
during FY19 (` in lacs)

NA NA 4.00 5.45 

Remuneration 
payable

As per Policy on Appointment, Remuneration and Diversity of the Board

Number of Meetings attended  : Number of Board Meetings of the Company attended during  FY19. FY19 :Financial year 
ending March 31, 2019. During FY19, there were four meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company held.
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Item No: 10
Section 180 (1) (c) of the  Act provides that the Board of 
Directors of a Company shall only with the consent of the 
Company by a special resolution borrow money together 
with money already borrowed (apart from temporary loans 
obtained and /or to be obtained from Company’s bankers 
in ordinary course of business) in excess of share capital, 
free reserves and securities premium. In addition to the Act, 
Regulations of SEBI and Regulations of RBI may apply for 
borrowing. At the 32nd AGM  held on  July 25, 2018 Board 
of Directors was authorised under Section 180 (1) (c) of the 
Act to borrow upto a limit of ` 36,000 crores apart from 
temporary loans obtained/to be obtained from the bankers 
(by way of cash credit limits and working capital demand 
loans) in the ordinary course of business. The expression 
temporary loans for this purpose means loans payable on 
demand or within six months from date of loan such as short 
term, cash credit arrangements, the discounting of bills, etc.  
The Company is a Non-Banking Finance Company engaged 
in providing retail and business loans. The Board considers 
increased amount of borrowing required to fund growth 
in business and to meet corporate, business and financial 
needs of the Company. Borrowing is one of the source of 
funding for the Company. So, Company needs to enhance it’s 
borrowings. The borrowings may be done under different 
methods as it depends upon different factors at the time of 
borrowing. Borrowing may be done under different methods 
as felt appropriate by the Board including Public Issue or 
private placement of NCDs/Securities. The Board considers 
to increase the borrowing powers to ` 40,000 crores apart 
from the temporary loans obtained/to be obtained from 
the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business. 
The Company will continue to maintain capital adequacy 
ratio, which is related to borrowings, as per the regulatory 
requirement of the Reserve Bank of India. 
As per Section 180 (1) (c) of the Act, the approval of Members 
is  required  to borrow funds exceeding aggregate of paid up 
capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company. 
The borrowings are proposed to be not exceeding ` 40,000 
crores, which are in excess of the limit set under Section 180 
(1) (c) of the Act. Different borrowings may be with different 
terms and conditions. Each borrowing would have terms 
and conditions.  The terms and conditions of each borrowing 
may vary from each other.  The availing of borrowings, terms 
and conditions of each borrowing is proposed to be left to 
the Board and Committee or any person authorized by the 
Board/ Committee. The Borrowings would require execution 

of different agreements with the LENDER(S) by the 
Company. LENDER(S) would require securities for such 
borrowings. The securities to be offered are expected to 
be 1.25 times of the borrowings, which would amount to   
` 50,000 crores in favour of the LENDER(S). The securities 
offered by the Company for such borrowings may require 
registration of charge with Registrar of Companies or any 
other authority or Government. The borrowings and 
creation or registration of charge would require different 
documents to be executed with such LENDER(S) by the 
Company. The documents to be executed for the purpose 
may contain a provision to take over the substantial 
assets of the Company in certain events.
The proviso to Rule 14 (2) of the Second Amendment 
Rules, 2018 the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of 
Securities) provides (vide notification No G.S.R. 752 (E) 
dated August 7, 2018) that in case the amount to be raised 
through offer or invitation for NCDs exceeds the limits 
specified under Sec 180 (1) (c) then it shall be sufficient 
compliance if the Company passes a special resolution 
only once in a year for all the offers or invitations for 
such NCDs during the year.  The limit specified by the 
Company in this resolution for raising funds through 
private placement of NCDs not exceeding ` 10,000 crores 
and the same is within the overall borrowing limits of   
` 40,000 crores.  Therefore no special resolution is 
required to be passed by the Company for amount to be 
raised through offer or invitation of NCDs.,
The Company would be required to raise through 
private placement of different securities. It is proposed 
to raise fresh funds by issue of securities namely, 
secured redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), 
Subordinated Debts, Commercial Papers, Bonds or any 
other Debt Securities on private placement basis. Private 
placement shall be made for an amount not exceeding to 
` 10,000 crores (Rupees Ten thousand crores) in different 
tranches/issues within overall borrowing limit of ̀  40,000 
crores during the year 2019-2020 as proposed. 
As per Circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/144 
dated November 26, 2018 issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”), a Large 
Corporate is mandatorily required to raise at least 25% 
of its incremental borrowing during the financial year 
subsequent to the financial year in which it is identified as 
a Large Corporate, by way of issuance of debt securities. 
The Company is a Large Corporate and circular applies to 
the Company.  
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The Company is required to file a confirmation to this effect, 
which will be filed in due course. Thus, the Company is 
required to raise at least 25% of its incremental borrowing 
through issuance of debt securities. The incremental 
borrowing may be in excess of prescribed limit depending 
upon the growth of business of the Company. Depending 
upon the market conditions, the Company proposes to 
issue NCDs on private placement basis. The terms and 
conditions of the issue of NCDs including face value, 
coupon rate/interest rate, tenure, repayment, security, 
listing, etc. will be decided by the Board in consultation 
with subscribers, lead managers, trustees, other agencies 
as may be required. The Company may also issue the NCDs 
at discount or premium depending upon debt market 
conditions prevailing on the date of issue of the NCDs and 
relevant regulatory requirements, i.e. number of ISINs 
maturing per financial year. The funds raised through 
proceeds of the issue of NCDs will be utilized for various 
financing, lending, and investments, repaying the existing 
liabilities/loans, business operations, capital expenditure, 
working capital requirements, issue expenses and general 
corporate purposes of the Company. Further, passing of 
this resolution is also necessary in order to enable the 
Company to comply with the SEBI Circular. 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company and their relatives thereof are interested 
or concerned financial or otherwise in the proposed 
resolution except to the extent of their holdings in 
securities of the Company, if any. The Board of Directors 
recommend passing of the Resolution set out in item no - 
10 of the Notice as a Special Resolution.

NOTES FORMING A PART OF THE NOTICE:
1.	 The explanatory statement as required under section 

102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) with respect 
to ordinary/special business set out in item no.5 to 10 
of the Notice is annexed hereto.

2.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY 
(IES) TO ATTEND AND ON A POLL VOTE ON HIS/
HER BEHALF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

3.	 A person can act as a proxy on behalf of 
members not exceeding 50 and holding in the 
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 

In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by 
a member holding more than 10% of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy 
for any other person or shareholder.

4.	 A blank proxy form is enclosed. The proxy form duly 
completed, stamped and executed must be deposited 
at the office of the Registrar and Transfer Agent at M/s 
Integrated Registry Management Services Private 
Ltd, 2nd Floor, Kences Towers, No.1 Ramakrishna 
Street, Off. North Usman Road, T. Nagar, Chennai - 
600 017 (“RTA”) at least forty-eight hours before the 
time fixed for the commencement of the AGM.

5.	 The attached attendance slip duly executed shall be 
tendered at the registration counter for entry into 
the meeting hall.

6.	 During the period beginning 24 hours before the 
time fixed for commencement of AGM and ending 
of the AGM, a member would be entitled to inspect 
the proxies lodged at any time during 10 am to 4 pm, 
provided not less than three days notice is given in 
writing to the Company.

7.	 Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 
36 of the LODR in respect of the directors  
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM 
forms a part of this Notice. The directors have  
furnished consent/declaration for their appointment/ 
re-appointment as required under the Act and the 
Rules thereunder.

8.	 The Notice is sent to all the Members, whose names 
appear in the Register of Members as on Friday, June 
21, 2019. This Notice can be accessed on the web site 
of the Company at http://www.nseprimeir.com/IR_
DOWNLOAD/PPN_CORP_ANNOUNCEMENTS/SCUF_
AGM_NOTICE_29072019.ZIP. The physical copies 
of these documents and the financial statement 
including consolidated financial statements, auditors 
report thereon and every document referred thereto 
shall be available at the Registered office of the 
Company for inspection on working days between 
10 am to 4 pm, 21 days before the date of AGM.

9.	 The members can cast their votes by way of remote 
e-voting provided by the Company through CDSL 
in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date 
July 22, 2019. Any Member not having login id and 
password for remote e-voting, may obtain it by 
sending a request to the RTA. 
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 10.	 Please update Bank Account numbers, Income Tax Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) and other details by 
submitting the relevant documents to your DP or RTA  

11.	 The Statutory Registers will be available for inspection by the Members at the AGM. Relevant documents and 
statements referred to in this Notice are open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company 
during business hours till the date of the AGM.  

12.	 Pursuant to section 91 of the Act and Regulation 42 of the LODR, the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners and 
Share Transfer Book will remain closed from Tuesday, July 23, 2019 to Monday, July 29, 2019 (both days inclusive) for 
the purpose of the AGM and for the purpose of payment of final dividend.

13.	 Subject to the provisions of the Act, the dividend, if declared at the AGM shall be paid on or after August 2, 2019 to  the 
demat account holders or holders of physical shares as at the end of  the day on  July 22, 2019 provided by DP or RTA 
as the case may be .

14.	 Shareholders holding shares in physical form under multiple folios are requested to consolidate their holdings in a 
single folio enabling the Company to serve effectively.

15.	 Please address all correspondence including dividend matters to the RTA. 
16.	 Pursuant to the provisions of  section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the dividends which remain unclaimed 

for a period of 7 years will be transferred by the Company to the “Investor Education and Protection Fund” (“IEPF”) 
established by the Central Government as and when they fall due for transfer.  Shareholders who have not encashed 
their dividend warrants/payment instrument(s) so far are requested to make their claim to the RTA before transfer to 
IEPF.  The following table shows the details of due date of transfer of unclaimed dividend to IEPF.

Year ending 
on March 31

Due Date of Transfer to IEPF Year ending 
March 31

Due Date of Transfer to IEPF
Final Dividend Interim Dividend Final Dividend Interim Dividend

2012 October 31, 2019 December 6, 2018 2016 September 2, 2023 December 4, 2022
2013 August 30, 2020 December 5, 2019 2017 August 4, 2024 December 1, 2023
2014 September 1, 2021 November 30, 2020 2018 July 31, 2025 December 4, 2024
2015 September 1, 2022 December 5, 2021 2019 November 29, 2025

	 The company is required to transfer the shares to IEPF Authority, the shares in respect of which the dividend is not 
claimed/remains unpaid for seven consecutive years or more and such dividend/shares can be claimed by respective 
members from IEPF authority by following the prescribed procedures. 

17.	 Communications including Annual Report, Notice of AGM, the process and manner of e-voting, Attendance Slip, 
Proxy Form are being sent by electronic mode to the registered email addresses available with the Company/RTA/DP 
and by permitted mode to the members, who have not registered their email ids with the Company/RTA/DP.  Members 
will be entitled to be furnished, free of cost, the physical copy (ies) of the document(s) sent by e-mail upon receipt of 
a requisition from them, any time, as a Member of the Company.

18.	 Members can update their nominations by submitting respective forms to RTA or DP as the case may be.
19.	 Shareholders seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write to the Company Secretary of 

the Company at the Secretarial Office of the Company at least 7 days in advance of the date of the AGM, so as to keep 
the information ready at the AGM.

20.	  The members, who have casted their vote by remote e-voting may attend the meeting, but shall not be entitled to cast 
their vote again.

21.	 The facility for voting shall be made available at meeting with the assistance of scrutinisers, by use of ballot or polling 
paper.  Members attending the meeting, who have not already casted their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to 
exercise their right at the meeting.

22.	 Authorised representatives of corporate members attending/voting at the AGM are requested to send certified copies 
of such authorisation of their Board to the Company, in advance.
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23.	 The remote e-voting period shall commence from Friday, July 26, 2019 at 10.00 a m and shall close on Sunday, July 28, 
2019 at 5 p m. During this period of remote e-voting, the Members of the Company, holding shares either in physical 
form or in dematerialized form may cast their vote electronically.  The remote e-voting module will be disabled 
for voting thereafter and the Members will not be able to cast their vote electronically beyond the date and time 
mentioned above (July 28, 2019 at 5 p m). In order to e-vote, you need to Log in and then vote. The followings state 
the Login process.

	 (i)	 Log on to the e-voting website :   www.evotingindia.com
	 (ii)	 Click on “Shareholders/Member” tab.
	 (iii)	 Enter following user ID and the Capcha 
		  NSDL Demat account holder (8 character DP ID followed by 8 digit client ID), CDSL Demat account holder (16 

digit beneficiary ID), shares held in physical form (EVSN followed by registered folio number with the Company)
	 (iv)	 Enter Password (existing password if already registered for e-voting, PAN and Bank Account Number or Date of 

Birth if e-voting for first time with password of your choice in the new password field).
		  If Demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code 

and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
	 (v)	 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
	 (vi)	 Click on the number below EVSN for Shriram City Union Finance Limited.
	 (vii)	 Resolution Description, Choice etc. will be displayed. Against each resolution both the choices “YES/NO” would be 

there for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution 
and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

	 (viii)	Click on the “Resolutions File Link” for resolution details, if you desire.
	 (ix)	 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 

displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else click on “CANCEL” and modify your vote.
	 (x)	 After “CONFIRM” the vote on the resolution will not be allowed to modify.
	 (xi)	 “Click here to print” option will print voting done.
	 (xii)	 Votes can also be casted by using mobile app of CDSL by downloading mobile app from Google Play Store. 

Windows and Apple smart phones by following instructions as prompted therein. 
	 (xiv) Institutional Members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) who wish to cast their votes through remote 

e-voting should send a scanned copy of the Registration form bearing the stamp and signature of the authorized 
person of the entity, the list of accounts and scanned copy (PDF format) of the relevant Board Resolution and 
Power of Attorney (POA) etc to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

	 (xv)	 In case of any queries the Frequently Asked  Questions  (“FAQs”)  and  e-voting  manual  available  at  www.
evotingindia.com under help section can be referred to  or by writing  email to  helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
or call on 18002005533 or by contacting the Company Secretary of the Company at the contacts mentioned on 
the top of this notice.

	 (xvi)	 The Scrutiniser would be able to view the names and number of shareholders who casted the vote by way of 
e-voting on Sunday July 28, 2019 after 5 p.m.  in the presence of at least two witnesses (not being in employment 
of the Company) and would unblock the voting pattern after the conclusion of the AGM on July 29, 2019 and 
report on the results of voting.

24.	 The Scrutiniser after his scrutiny will submit his report to the Chairman or Managing Director of the Company and 
the results of the voting along with the report of the Scrutiniser would be declared by displaying it on the website of 
the Company on or before July 31, 2019.
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Route map to AGM venue
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Narada Gana Sabha (Mini Hall), 
No. 314 , T. T K. Road, 
Alwarpet, Chennai - 600 018

Dr. Radha Krishnan Salai

To Marina Beach

Gopalapuram

Cathedral Road Flyover
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I certify that I am a member / proxy /authorised representative for the member of the Company. I/We hereby record 
rdmy/our presence at the 33  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held/held on Monday, July 29, 2019 at 

Narada Gana Sabha ('Mini Hall'), No. 314 (Old No. 254), T. T. K. Road, Alwarpet, Chennai – 600 018 at 10:00 A.M.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

Name of the member (s) : Registered address :

E-mail Id : Folio No./DP ID :  Client ID No.:

I/We, being the member (s) holding  .......................... shares of Shriram City Union Finance Limited, hereby appoint 

1. Name:.............................................. 2. Name:..............................................3. Name:...............................................

Address:.............................................. Address:..............................................Address:................................................

E-mail Id:............................................. E-mail Id:.............................................E-mail Id:...............................................

Signature:...................or failing him/her Signature:.................or failing him/her Signature:.............................................
rdas my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 33  Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held on the July 29, 2019 at 10 a.m. at Narada Gana Sabha (Mini Hall), No.314,T T K Road, Alwarpet, 

Chennai 600 018 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :

Signed this .................................... day of ........................................... 2019

Signature of shareholder ........................................Signature of Proxy holder (s) ........................................

Notes: 1.  This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered office of the 
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

rd 2. Please refer to the Notice of the 33  Annual General Meeting for the resolutions, explanatory statement and notes.

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
rd33  Annual General Meeting - July 29, 2019

Name of the Member/Proxy (In Block Letters) Signature of the Member/Proxy

Note: Please complete and sign this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. Only Member (s) or 
their proxies with this attendance slip will be allowed entry to the Meeting. Duplicate slips will not be issued at the entrance. 

Affix

Revenue

Stamp



Note : A Member may vote either for or against each resolution.

Resolution No. 

1.

2.

3 (i).

3 (ii).

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Resolutions

Ordinary Business / Ordinary Resolution

Adoption of standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019

Adoption of consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019

Declaration of final dividend

Confirmation of interim dividend declared

Remuneration of Auditors

Special Business / Ordinary Resolution

Director retires by rotation

Appointment  of Sri C R Muralidharan (DIN – 02443277) as an Independent Director

Appointment of Sri Diwakar Bhagwati Gandhi  (DIN – 00298276) as an Independent Director

Appointment of Sri Pranab Prakash Pattanayak (DIN - 00506007) as an Independent Director

Appointment of Sri Venkataraman Murali  (DIN – 00730218) as an Independent Director

Borrowing Powers of the Board 

Special Business / Ordinary Resolution

Appointment  of  Sri Duruvasan Ramachandra (DIN - 00223052) as a Non Independent Director

Appointment of Sri Yalamati Srinivasa Chakravarti (DIN - 00052308) as a Director, 
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Special Business /Special Resolution


